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ADDITIONAL FINDINGS OF FACT 

The Comniesion makes the  follawing findings of fact, which are 

aupplemental t o  findings of fac t  1 through 41, entered herein on 

December 29, 1971, 27 Ind. C1, Ccmm 583, 592:  

42. New York Policy on. Indians and Indian Lands. 

In its f i r s t  consti tution,  adopted in 1777, the  State of New 

York expressed its intention t o  maintain control  w e r  the  disposit ion 

of Indian lmds within i ts  borders. Art ic le  37 of the  const i tu t ion 

provided that no purchase of Indian lands would be valid without the  

conrent of the state  legis la ture .  This policy was deemed necessary 

t o  insure that u ~ c r u p u l o u e  Land speculators did not provoke Indian 

h o s t i l i t i e s  against New York settlements. 



Settlement in weatern ~ c u  york kc- pomible vith the ~ M f t  of 

British military operations t o  the Swth. War York b y l a  its policy 

of acquiring Indian l a d s  wfthln the atate in  1782. 

43. m l i t a ~  Land Bountien. 

To encourage enlistments in the Continental Amy d u r w  the 

Revolutionary War, both Congr.88 .nd York State promired land bounties 

t o  those who served. To f u l f i l l  there promiwr, Wav York, by the Act 

of July 25, 1782, Sixth Seaaion, Chapter X I ,  met u i d e  certain L M ~  

the western part of the s tate  t o  be ured aa bounties for Naw York 

citirem who had served during the war. had8 belonging to the Six  

Nations were included w i t h i n  thore ret aside, but the land8 of the 

Cheidaa and the Tuscaroras were specif ical ly  exempted from the operation 

of the act.  

. Effect of the Treaty of Paria on the S i x  Nattona. 

The Treaty of Paris of September 3, 1783, 8 Stat. 80, 8 8 t 8 b l t d d  ' 

a boudary'line between the United Stater and Great Britain which l e f t  the 

lands -of the Six Nations within the Unfted States. George Clinton, Governor 

o f  New York, expressed his desire t o  confiscate the land8 of thore tribe8 which 

had al l ied with England during the war. General Wuhington opposed thin 

polfcy, as he feared it would lead to  ranewed hoat i l i t i er  with these 

triber. Warhington urged h i s  view. on the Continental Congrer8, which 

adopted them and invi ted  the Sfir Nation8 to return to their l d r  in 

mv York. 
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45. Congres8ional Knowledge of New York Bounty Law. 

(hr. October 3, 1783, the federal  Cnmaittee on Indian Affairs 

reported t o  Congress tha t  New York was granting Indian lands within its bounds 

t o  i t s  of f ice rs  and soldiers  a s  bounties. A resolution was proposed tha t  

C o q p 8 8  recommend t o  New York tha t  it repeal i ts  land bounty leg i s la t ion  

i n  the --rent the implementation of such leg is la t ion  threatened continued 

peace with the Indians. (h motion of a New York delegate t o  Congress, 

the resolution was defeated. 

46.  Settlement on Indian Lands Outlawed. 

(h September 22,  1783, Congress adopted a proclamation pro- 

hibi t ing settlement on lands, outside the boundaries of any s t a t e ,  

inhabited o r  claimed by Indians, and prohibiting anyone f rw.purchasing 

o r  receiving a cession of those lands without the  express approval of 

Congress. The proclamation declared void any t i t l e  t o  such land 

obtained i n  viola t ion of i ts  provisions. 

47. Appointment of Federal Indian Ccrpmissioners. 

On March 22,  1784, the  President of Congress issued instructions 

t o  the comnissioners who had been appointed t o  t r e a t  with the Indians 

i n  the Northern and Middle Departments, which included the Six Nations. 

The Ccmaissioners were instructed tha t  the  purpose of t h e i r  negotiations 

would be t o  receive the  Indians in to  the  favor and protection of the 

United States ,  and t o  es tab l i sh  a boundary between white settlements 

and Indian lands. 
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Clinton with the admonition tha t  i ts  contents should be kept secret. 

48. Federal Knowledge f i t  k w  York Would Interfere With Treaty. 

Caqgress received infomation tha t  New York was determined 

t o  in te r fe re  with federal peace negotiations with New York I a d i a ~ 8 ~  

b ~ b t  4, 1784, Arthur Lee, a federal camnimioner appointed t o  

t r e a t  with the Indiana, w o t e  t o  the Chairman of the  Committee of the 
1/ - 

States  tha t  Governor Clinton was a t  Albany preparing t o  t r e a t  with 

the  Six Nations. Lee auggeated tha t  the Carmittee determine whether 

New York had the authority t o  t r e a t  with the Indiana. Lee noted t ha t  

i f  the  Indians realized that  there were r iva l  powers attempting t o  

negotiate with them they might take actions contrary t o  the welfare of 

the  confederacy. 

49. Indians Instructed not t o  Treat with New York. 

During the sumrrPr of 1784 the federal Indian c ~ i e u l o n e r s  

warned the  Oneidas and Tuscaroras not t o  s e l l  or exchange any of t h e i r  

lands. The corrmissionera also informed a l l  of the Six Nations tha t  

Congress had the ultimate authority t o  t r e a t  with Indians, and tha t  a 

t rea ty  with an individual s t a t e  without the sanction of Congress w u l d  

be invalid, The Indians were further notif ied that Governor Clinton 

was not authorized by Congretw t o  t r ea t  with than. 

1/ Under the Article8 of Confederation, the  Cormrittee of t h e  Sta tes  
&s authorized t o  exercise pmr8 delegated t o  it by the  Coatinantal 
Congress when the l a t t e r  bod.. was not i n  seesion, 
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50. Report t o  Congress on the  Success of the  Starnix Negotiations. 

In late October 1784, the federal  comnissioners forwarded t o  

the President of Congress the  a r t i c l e s  of the Port Stamrix Treaty and 

an account of the negotiations which preceded it. They s ta ted  t ha t  they 

had been much troubled by the attempts of Governor Clinton t o  f ru s t r a t e  

the t r c 2 y  and by the conduct of ce r ta in  c i t i zens  of New York. They 

related tha t  federal mil i tary  of f ice rs  had became involved i n  a dispute 

with local  law enforcement o f f ice rs  which resulted i n  process being 

served on Lieutenant John Mercer, a federal  off icer .  

In  a second l e t t e r ,  dated November 20, 1784, the  conmrissioners 

fur ther  explained t o  Congress the confrontation with New York authorit ies.  

During the t rea ty  negotiations the  comnissioners became aware t h a t  New 

York citizens were se l l i ng  r u m  t o  Indians present a t  the  t rea ty  council. 

The cannaissioners ordered federal  troops t o  confiscate the  rum and remove 

i t 8  s e l l e r s  from the t rea ty  grounds. The ownersof the rum complained to  the 

local  sher i f f  who served process on Lieutenant Mercer. The camnissioners 

informed Congress tha t  they had instructed Mercer t o  ignore the process, 

and had not i f ied jus t ices  of the county court tha t  such process was i n  

viola t ion of the Articles of Confederation and tha t  federal  o f f ice rs  could 

not carry out t he i r  respons ib i l i t i es  i f  they were subject t o  s t a t e  process* 

51. Congress Transfers Seat of Goverftnent t o  New York City. 

On December 23, 1784, Congress adopted a resolution tha t  

earmissioners.be appointed t o  se lec t  the s i t e  of a new federal  c i t y  t o  
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5 4 .  New York Cormniseioners Prepare fo r  Treaty with Oneidas 
and Tu8caroras. 

On May 1, 1785, New York Governor Clinton wrote a l e t t e r  t o  

the  New York Indian Commieaionera informing them t h a t  they had been 

ins t ructed  by the  l e g i e l a t u r e  to  obta in  cessions of Indian lands. 

Clinton requested t h a t  the  Conmissionera convene a meeting f o r  the  

purpose of making plans f o r  the  t r ea ty .  

On Play 11, 1785, the  New York Indian Commissioners m e t  a t  Albany. 

T'he Coarmiasioners adopted a resolut ion t h a t  a treaty be held with t h e  

Oneidas and Tuscaroras only. On Hay 13, 1785, the  Commissioners 

reconvened and adopted a proposed speech t o  the Oneidas and Tuscaroras 

i n  the  following language: 

Brothers of the Oneida 6 Tuecarora Nations: 
The Governor of t h i s  S t a t e  ( a t  t h e  Meeting of t h e  Legis- 

l a t u r e  l a s t  Winter) l a i d  before them a Message from the 
Grasshopper delivered by Colonel Lewis, i n  Presence of Capt 
David and Captain Hendrick, from which i t  appears t h a t  John 
Harper has l a t e l y  been i n  the  Oneida Country, and by Mis- 
representat ions and other  unjust  and unlawful Means obtained 
a Writing f o r  a l a rge  Tract of Land i n  the  Neighbourhood of 
Onaguaga and extending on both Sides of the Susquehannah 
River: That the  Grasshopper and other Chiefs desired t h a t  
the  s a i d  Writing might be destroyed, t h a t  the  White People 
might be prevented from coming among You t o  cheat You ou t  
of your Lands: That i t  might be made k n m  through the  
Country t h a t  Harper has no Right t o  the  sa id  Lands, s o  t h a t  
the  People might not be deceived and t h a t  You looked up t o  
t h i a  Governuent t o  take Care of your Rights. - O f  a l l  these  
Things the Legislature were informed l a s t  Winter. We are 
very much surprized a t  Harper's Conduct. We informed You 
a t  t he  Treaty last Summer t h a t  he had deceived You, and 
We then gave You a caution agains t  attempting t o  seZl Lands 
t o  any Person, who had not an Authority and Licence from 
the Government, and ye t  We f ind  t h a t  some of You have not- 
withstanding have suffered yourselves t o  be again imposed 



upon by b r p e r ,  who has obtained a Writing fo r  a large 
Tract of Land vi thout  the  Authority o r  &larledge of the  
Gmmment ,  and therefore  the Sale and Writin8 are v o i d  
and good f o r  nothing, and although Application was made 
t o  the Legislature l a s t  Winter t o  have t h l e  Purchare of 
k r p e r ' s  confirmed, i t  wu, r e f w e d  b e c a u e  it WM o d e  
without Authority from t h e  Stat. and againat  the C o ~ t i -  
tu t ion .  W e  hope You will be wre cautiouo f o r  the fu tu re  
.nd not make any Sales o r  Writing8 of Land. t o  any Perrosu 
wfic %mnot ahow You a good lawful Authority from the  State 
t o  mate  a Purchaee from You. As We underrtand that You 
arc disposed t o  sel l  so- of your Lands, We nov i n f o a  You 
t h a t  You have an Opportunity to  do it  t o  the  Governor a d  
CoPlmissioners who were with him a t  Fort Stoawix l a u t  
Summer. The Legislature have paased a 1 1-t Winter 
giving the  Governor and Commiseioners Authority & Licence 
t o  purchase Lands from You.- And W e  have received a h t t e r  
from the  Governor a few D.pu ago on t h a t  Subject,  who bath 
requested U s  t o  inform You t h a t  he and t h e  Carmniseionerr 
w i l l  hold a Treaty with You a t  t h e  German Fla t to ,  i n  Ordar 
t o  buy Lands from You. And We now send Mr, Ryc'lunan t o  You 
t o  de l ive r  You t h i s  Le t t e r  and t o  bring back your An8w8rm 
t h a t  We may inform the  Governor a t  what Tiam he and the  
Commissionere may meet You. We have requcr~ted M r .  R y c b  
t o  agree with You about the  Time. The Governor has Bwi- 
neae of Importance t o  t r a m a c t  the  Beginning of July, which 
will requi re  h ie  constant Attendance, the  remaining Par t  of 
t h e  Seaeon. It w i l l  therefore  be necessary t o  hold the  
Treaty as soon ae poeeible. We mean t o  hold Treaty for 
t h i e  Purpose only w i th  You, and not with the Onondagor, 
Cayugas and Seneca Nations: they have i n  the l a t e  War dona 
us much Injury, f o r  which W e  expect they w i l l ' h e r e a f t e r  
give us a proper compensation i n  Lands. 
(Def. Ex. 3-56, Corn. Ex. 1: Proceedings of the  C o d r r i -  
of Indian Affairs  i n  the S ta te  of New York 72-74.] 

The C o d e e i o n e r s  resolved t h a t  Mr. Pe ter  R y c k ~ n ,  an i n t e r p r e t a t ,  6.1%-r 

t he  massage t o  the  Indiam.  

On May 14, 1785, the Indian Conmierrionere wrote t o  Gowmor C l i a t o n  . 

informing him t h a t  they had decided t o  treat with the Oneldrs and Rucrroru 

and t h a t  they had decided to send Efr, Ryckmm t o  i n v i t e  the Indiana t o  the  



Treaty. The Comniseioners explained t o  Clinton that they had decided 

t o  t r e a t  only with the  Oaridae and Tuecarorae because t h e i r  land wcls of 

more value t o  the s t a t e  than t h a t  of o the r  tribes and because t h e  

allowance from the l e g i s l a t u r e  would be i n s u f f i c i e n t  to purchase more 

than the lands of these two t r i b e s ,  The Commiseionere a l r o  informed the  

Governor bf the  preparations being made f o r  the  t rea ty .  

A t  a meeting of the I n d i a  C o ~ s s i o n e r e  on May 26, 1785, Mr. Rydrman 

reported t h a t  he had delivered the message t o  the  Indians and t h a t  the  

Indiana had expressed t h e i r  w i l l h g n e s e  t o  meet with the Conunissioners 

on the subject  matter of the message, On May 27, 1785, the  Commissioners 

informed Governor Clinton t h a t  the Indians had agreed t o  a t tend the treaty, 

55. Fort Herkimer Treaty Proceedings 

a, June 23, 1785. The Fort Herkimer Treaty Council commenced 

with a speech by Governor Clinton. Clinton s t a t e d  t h a t  he was aware t h a t  

unauthorized white people were attempting t o  purchase lands from the 

Oneidas. He reminded the  Oneidas that previously they had been cautioned 

not  t o  s e l l  t h e i r  lands except t o  the  S ta te  of New York. Clinton stated 

f u r t h e r  tha t  he believed t h a t  the Oneidas wished t o  s e l l  some of t h e i r  

land and t h a t  accordingly he had ca l l ed  t h i s  t r e a t y  s o  t h a t  the state 

ceuld purchase land from them. 

The Crasshopper, an Oneida leader ,  replied t o  the Governor's speech. 

He letatad that the matter proposed for  discussion by the  Governor was of 

great  importance t o  the Oneidas. The Graaahopper stated t h a t  one of t h e  
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i n f l u e n t i a l  chiefs o f  the t r i b e  had not y e t  ar r ived at  the  council and 

t h a t  the m e i h  could not reply t o  t h e  Govemor'cl talk until  he arr ived.  

b. June 24. 1785. No formal meeting w u  held on June 24 

because the  Indians were not yet  prepared t o  uuwer  Governor Clinton'@ 

speech. The Cornmiasionere spent the  day t ry ing t o  asce r ta in  t h e  view6 

of the C-qidas. It was discovered t h a t  m e t  of the  Indiana were opposed 

t o  aelaing anything other  than a urnall mountainous t r a c t  of land between the  

Delaware and Suequehanna r ive r s .  D u r l n ~  the  evening a p r iva te  confaremce 

was held with the pr incipal  chiefe of the  t r ibe .  A t  t he  conference the  

Governor described the  much l a rge r  t r a c t  t h a t  the Sta te  desired t o  purcham. 

From the record of the  proceeding,&e t r a c t  New York wanted t o  acquire 

had approximately the following boundaries: B e g i ~ i n g  a t  the  mouth of 

the Unadilla River, then up the Unadilla twenty milea, then west t o  the  

Chenango River, then down the Chenango River t o  the  Suequehanna River, 

then t o  the  Line of Property, and along the  l i n e  of property t o  the  

point  of beginning. Clinton explained t o  the  Indiana t h a t  the S t a t e  

wished t o  purchase t h e  lands t o  avoid the conf l t c t  t h a t  would a r i u e  

should whites t r y  t o  settle on those lands. 

The "Line of Property" refer red  t o  i n  t h e  above descr ip t ion was 

a bouadary agreed upon a t  a trtzAty between the  Br i t i sh  and the Six Nation8 

a t  Fort Staawix on November 5, 1768. Each party t o  t h e  t r e a t y  agreed 

not t o  claim t i t l e  to  land on c:he other party 'a aide  of t h e  l i n e .  A. 

re levant  t o  t h i s  case the Line of Property is M follows: 



37 Ind. C1. C a m .  522 

. . . Across the Mountains t o  the  East Branch of the  
Susquehanna, and thence up tha t  Branch t o  t h e  Wego; 
thence t o  the Delaware, and up t h a t  River t o  a point  
opposite where the Tianaderha (Unadilla) f a l l s  i n t o  the  
Smquehanna, thence along the  Eastern Boundary of Broom 
County, Northward, across t o  and up the  West Branch of 
The Unadilla t o  t h e  Head of the  sclme,and thence i n  a 
etraight Line t o  the  Junction of Canada Creek and Wood 
Creek, about seven W l e s  W e s t  of Port Staovix. 21 

c. June 25, 1785. A t  t he  June 25 sess ion of the  'Fort Herkimer 

T r u t y  council  Petrus (or Peter)  the Minister del ivered t h e  r ep ly  of 

the  Oneidas and Tuscaroras t o  Governor  linto on's speech. Petrue r e l a t e d  

that  a f t e r  hearing the Governot'a speech t h e  ch ie f s  had agreed t o  sell  

a s u b s t a n t i a l  t r a c t  of land. He  s t a t e d  t h a t  i n  o f fe r ing  t h i s  land t o  

New York the  Indiana were actfag i n  good f a i t h .  Petrue f u r t h e r  expressed 

hie regre t  that  the Comnissioners considered t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  land un- 

worthy of t h e i r  consideration. 

Petrus informed the Governor t h a t  the Oneidas could not  s e l l  the  

t r a c t  requeated by the  Cu&eaioners because i t  was important hunting 

land which they could not  p a r t  w i t h .  Petrue suggested ins tead t h a t  t h e  

object  sought by New York-the avoidance of c o n f l i c t  between the Indians 

and white set t lers--could be obtained by the  Oneida leaeing a t i e r  of 

farms along the  Property Line t o  serve as a buffer  agains t  f u r t h e r  white 

encroachment. Petrus concluded h i s  speech by presenting t o  the Governor 

2/ The above descr ip t ion of the  1768 "Line of Property" is taken from - 
P l a i n t i f f  ' e  Exhibit 64, "Proceedings of t h e  Comis8ioner of Indian Affairs  
i n  New York," page 45, footnote 1, published i n  1861. It should be noted 
t h a t  as of 1768 when the  " ~ n e  of Property" vaa established by t h e  1768 
t r e a t y  between the Six Nations and t h e  Br i t i sh ,  the re  was no area 
known a s  "Broom County" desp i t e  the f a c t  t h a t  auch county is mentioned 
i n  the  1861 descript ion.  
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eeveral  Oneida claim concerning v io la t ions  of the  1868 Fort S t a ~ & x  

Treaty between the  Six Nation8 and the  Bri t ish.  

In the course of h i s  speech, P a t r w  made the following atatenmat: 

. . Were We t o  l i e t s a  t o  al l  t h e  Overtures t h a t  a r e  made 
t o  U s  for  the  Purchase of OUT a d s  . ., We ahould have 
none f o r  our Poster i ty ,  who would have Reuoa t o  blame Us. 
Since l a s t  Winter We had detenained not to  e e l 1  any of our 
La~c?, and tha t  the Boundaries f ixed rhould remain. The 
hiis: States  have inforarsd U s  t h a t  the  So i l  of our Lands 
YIli our own, and we wish your h e i s t a n c e  to prevent your 
People from coming among Ua f o r  t h a t  Purpoae. W e  accept 
of your w h e  and sa lu tary  Advice, and i f  we a r e  not fool ish  
We w i l l  follow it. We look t o  the  Eastward. The Indiana 
who lfved there are now o e t t l e d  among U s  and We have been 
obliged t o  give them Lands. Thie will be our Caee should 
We e e l 1  our Lands as they have done. [PI. Ex. 7b, Corma. 
Ex. 1: Proceedings of the  Colrmieeionets of Indian Affair8 
i n  New York 91-92 (1861). (emphasis i n  the  or ig inal ) .  ] 

d. June 26, 1785. Governor Clinton began the June 26 council 

with a reply t o  Pet rus t  statement. Clinton 8ta ted  t h a t  the  fr iendehip 

between the  Oneidas and New York waa one of long durat ion and would not 

be ef fec ted  by t r i v i a l  matters. W a v e r ,  t o  prceerve t h a t  fr iendehip 

i t  was necessary tha t  t r u t h  and candor be observed i n  a l l  t h e i r  dealings.  

Clinton continued that it would be unreaeonable f o r  New York t o  be 

displeased with the  Oneida8 f o r  not wanting t o  e e l 1  t h e i r  l a d o .  However, 

i t  was the Oneida's f a i l u r e  t o  honor the a t a t e ' s  request not t o  dedl 

with individuale,  thus causing great  confusion I n  New York, that 

neceseitated the convening of the  treaty. 



Clinton s t a t e d  f u r t h e r  t h a t  i n  i n v i t i n g  the  Indians t o  the  t r e a t y  

New York had given them ample not ice  of its i n t e n t  t o  purchase lands. 

The C o d e s i o n e r a  had the  r i g h t  t o  expect that the  Oneidas would dea l  

openly and candidly with them, and t h a t  i f  the  Oneidas d id  not d e s i r e  

t o  sell  t h e i r  land they should have n o t i f i e d  t h e  Commissioners and saved 

them the  long t r i p  t o  Fort Mcrkimer. 

W i i L  iegard t o  the  lands offered by t h e  Oneidas, Clinton remarked 

t h a t  they murt be w a r e  t h a t  it waa mountainous and therefore of no use 

t o  New York. Moreover, because t h i s  land was l e s s  i n  quanti ty and 

i n f e r i o r  i n  qua l i ty  t o  the  lands the  Indiana had offered t o  s e l l  t o  

individuals ,  the Commissioners doubted the  seriousneee of t h e i r  o f fe r .  

Clinton re jec ted  the  o f f e r  by the  Oneidas t o  leaee  t h e i r  lands a8 an 

i n e u l t  t o  the s t a t e .  Clinton then s t a t e d ,  

Brothere! We must now dismias t h i s  Subject with only 
repeating t h a t  We a r e  sorry  We cannot agree, and We 
are the  more s o  becauee your Conduct i n  bargaining 
with some of our White People has pu t  i n  t h e i r  Minds, 
t o  look f o r  Settlements i n  t h a t  Quarter, and as i t  is 
remote from our o ld  Settlements and where We have too 
l i t t l e  Lande t o  form new ones, l a rge  enough t o  give 
Force and Energy t o  our Government, We a r e  a f r a i d  i t  
may be productive of Disorder and Miachief which i t  may 
be d i f f i c u l t  t o  prevent and t h a t  Uneasinesees may thereby 
be created between You and U s .  Should any thing of t h i s  
Kind happen, which We s incere ly  wish however may not  be 
the  Case, We now e n t r e a t  You Brothers t o  remember t h a t  
We aprize You of our Apprehensions, and t o  obviate them 
We propose t o  purchase those Lands from You which from 
your own Conduct might occasion Disputes, and t h a t  i f  
t h i s  is not n w  done i t  is your Fault  and not  ours, f o r  
We now again repeat  our o f f e r  t o  You. [Pl. Ex. 76, Co~rm.  
Ex. 1: Proceedings of the  Coumissionera of Indian Affa i rs  
in New York 97 (1861). ] 



Petrus the M n i a t e r  repl ied  t o  Governor Clinton. Ik a r i d  t h a t  

the  Indiana had misunderstood the Peesage delivered by Mr. Ryckman. 

They believed tha t  the s t a t e  merely vfshed t o  s e t t l e  the d i f f i u u l t i u  

which had a r i sen  out of the attempts by whites t o  purchase t h e i r  lauds. 

The Oneidas had not understood t h a t  Nev York wanted t o  purchaae land 

from them. 

Petrus s t a ted  again t h a t  the h e i d a s  could not par t  with t h e i r  

hunting lands. Petrus hoped that the  Ccmmisaionare would not be offended 

by the  I n d i a , ~  re fusa l  t o  s e l l .  - 

During the evening of June 26, 1785, the  Cbrmrissioners engaged i n  

p r iva te  conversations with severa l  chiefs and warrior6 of the Oneidas 

and Tuscaroras. 

e. June 27, 1785. On June 27,Pet rw the Minister,  exprereiag 

h i s  belief t h a t  Governor Clinton did not trust him, announced t h a t  he 

would speak no fu r the r  a t  the council. 

Peter the Quarter Master revealed t o  the  Commieeionem t h a t  the  

Indians had decided t o  e e l 1  t c  New York tha t  port ion of the  land requested 

by the Oomnissiornrslying south of the mouth of the  Unadllla River. H e  

expreseed h i s  expectation t h a t  t h i s  would be the  f i n a l  raqusst f o r  land 

by New Yark. 

Governor Clinton noted that the  l m d  being offered wae only hal f  what 

the s t a t e  rtqueeted and t h a t  accordingly the  atate would not pay the  

f u l l  price i t  had proposed. Peter repl ied  t h a t  t h e  Oneida8 had agreed t o  eel1 
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t h e  land not f o r  a pecuniary reward, but r a t h e r  t o  maintain t h e i r  

fr iendship with New York. H e  added t h a t  the  Oneida would not pa r t  with 

any more land. The council wae then recessed u n t i l  the  following day. 

f. June 28, 1795. Governor Clinton noted t h a t  the  Oneidas had 

agreed t, s e l l  land a s  f a r  a s  the  mouth of the  Unadilla River, and t h a t  

the  Commiseionere desired t o  purchase lands twenty miles up the  r i v e r .  

He euggested t h a t  t h e  p a r t i e s  s p l i t  the  d i f ference  by the  Indians agreeing 

t o  s e l l  a s  f a r  a s  ten  milee up the  Unadilla and the  Commissioners agreeing 

t o  pay the f u l l  considerat ion f o r  t h i s  t r a c t .  The Oneidas accepted the 

Governor's proposal. The par t iea  then executed a deed of cession and the  

t r e a t y  council was adjourned. 

56. New York Legislat ion Deposited With Congress. 

On July 26, 1785, the  congressional delegates from the  S t a t e  

of New York presented t o  the  Congress a copy of the  laws which had been 

enacted by the New York l e g i s l a t u r e  during its 1785 aession. 

57. Acquisition of Oneida Land Reported i n  New York Newspaper. 

On July 9, 1785, the  Independent Journal reported t h a t  

Chvernor Clinton and the  o the r  Commissionere had returned from Fort 

Herkimer having obtained a cession of lands from the  Oneidas and Tuscaroras. 

On July 23, 1785, the  Independent Journal contained an advertisement by 

the  New York S t a t e  Conmissioners of the  Land Office t h a t  lands obtained 
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from the Indian8 a t  Port Herkimer on June 28, 1785, were open for  

s e t t ~ e m c n t ,  and t h a t  locations on t h a t  land would be accepted after 

September 26, 1785. The not ice  contained a complete deucript ion of the 

land8 obtained from the  Oneidas and Tuscaroras. 

58. Massachusetts Claim t o  Lands i n  Western New York. 

The Comnmnwealth of Maseachuaetts maintained a claim, baaed 

on its colonial  char ter ,  t o  lands i n  New York west of the Hudson River 

Valley. This claim applied t o  the lands which New York intended t o  

open f o r  set-tlement under the Act of Apri l  11, 1785 (Finding 53, supra). 

59.  Correspondence Between Rufus King and Eldridge Gerry, Apr i l  1785, 

Rufus King, delegate t o  Congress from Massachueette, read of the  

crea t ion of the New York land o f f i c e  i n  the New York Packet of Apri l  18, 

1785 (see Finding 53, supra). The same day he wrote t o  Eldridge Gerry, - 
a l s o  a Massachusetts delegate,  then i n  Boston, about the  eetabliehment 

of the  land off ice .  With h ie  l e t t e r  King enclosed a copy of the  newe- 

paper account, King advised Gerry t h a t ,  i f  the Massachusetts l e g i s l a t u r e  

was st i l l  i n  session,  i t  would be wise f o r  i t  t o  adopt a resolut ion 

ins t ruc t ing  the  governor t o  proclaim t h a t  Massachusetts would not be bound 

by any New York land sa les  within the area claimed by Massachuaette. King 

a l s o  informed Gerry tha t  he  was considering moving Congress t o  adopt a 

resolut ion on the  subject .  

On April 28, 1785, Gerry repl ied  t o  Wng. He advised King t o  com- 

municate o f f i c i a l l y  wi th  the Maseachusetts legislature concerning the 

opening of the New York land of f i ces .  



60. Reaction of Msseachusetts Legislature and Governor. 

During June 1785 the Massachusetts l e g i s l a t u r e  received and 

debated a l e t t e r  from bfw,  King concerning t h e  cs tab l i ahmnt  of t h e  

New York land o f f i ce .  The l e g i s l a t u r e  completed its debate by adopting 

en order which di rec ted  the  Governor of Massachusetts t o  inform the  

Governor of New York t h a t  Massachusetts considered the  opening for  

eale of lande within the  t e r r i t o r y  claimed by both s t a t e s  t o  be improper, 

and t h a t  such ac t ion would be  l i k e l y  t o  cause the  re la t ionsh ip  between 

t h e  two s t a t e s  t o  de te r io ra te .  

On July  18, 1785, James Eowdoin, Governor of Maasachusettl~, wrote 

t o  George Clinton, Governor of New York. In h i s  l e t t e r  lbwdoin includad 

t h e  order of the  l eg ie la tu re .  Bowdoin informed Clinton t h a t  Maseachueetts 

considered New York's ac t ion t o  be improper, and requested t h a t  New York 

not f i n a l l y  dispose of the lands purchased a t  Fort Herkimer u n t i l  the  

dispute between the  two s t a t e s  was resolved. 

61. Congressional Knowledge of New York-Massachusetts Dispute. 

The controversy be tween New York and Massachusetts over the  lands 

i n  western New York was one of long standing and was w e l l  known t o  t h e  

delegates t o  the Continental Congress. P r i o r  t o  the  1785 Fort Herkimer 

Treaty, t h e  d ispute  had been re fe r red  t o  Congress t o  be s e t t l e d  by a 

federal court to  be convened under Art ic le  I X  of the  Ar t i c les  of 

Confederation. 

62. Settlement of the New York-Massachusetts Dispute. 

The federa l  court proceedings under the Art ic les  of Confederation 

proved t o  be complex and time consuming, and, accordingly, i n  1786 the  

l e g i s l a t u r e s  of New York and Massachusetts authorized t h e i r  agents t o  
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settle t h e  d ispute  without r e s o r t  t o  the court.  In December 1786 repre- 

sen ta t ives  of New York and Massachusetto aat a t  Hartford. Connecticut, t o  

work out a set t lement.  On Decamber 16, 1786, the  Rsrtford Colpromlse was 

eigaed by the agents of the s t a t e s .  

me area  included i n  the compromise wor, roughly tha t  pa r t  of New York 

S t a t e  we&: of a north-south l i n e  from Lake Ontario t o  the  northern boundary 

of Pennsylvania, located abouteighty-two miles west of the  nor theas t  corner 

of the  S t a t e  of Pennsylvania. Such a north-south l i n e  ruhs approximately 

through the center  of Seneca Lake. Within t h i s  area  New York re ta ined 

ju r i sd ic t ion  and sovereignty but granted to Maseachwetts the  r i @ t  of 

preempt ion. 

On April  24, 1787, Congress was informed t h a t  New York and 

Massachusetts had s e t t l e d  t h e i r  dispute and t h a t  the  f e d e r a l  court 

proceedings would no longer be necessary. The exact  tenns of t h e  cooaprodrs 

were read i n t o  the  records of Congress. 

63. Reorganization of the  Indian Department. 

On August 7, 1786, Congress adopted an Ordinance f o r  the 

Regulatton of Indian Affairs .  Under the ordinance the  Indian Department 

was divided i n t o  two d i s t r i c t @ .  The 6outhern D i s t r i c t  included a11 

India- res id ing south of the Ohio River. The Northern D i s t r i c t  included 

"all other  Indian Nations within the  sa id  t e r r i t o r y  [of the  United s t a t e e l ,  

and westward of Hudson r i v e r  . . . " P1. Ex. 1030: XXXI Journalr of the 

Continental Congress 491 (1934). 



The ordinance d i r e c t e d  that a euperinten&nt be appointed for each 

district. It was t o  be the rcapowibil ity of the muperint&&ntn t o  carry 

out congressional directiveangarding Indian affaira, and they were  t o  

report t o  Congreee through the Secretary for  War. Nchud Butlar waa 

appointed Superintendent fo r  the Northern D t u  t r i c t  . 
64 Congress Directs tha t  Treaty be Held with Northern I n d i m  . 

In  3ctober 1787 Coagrema directed t ha t  Arthur S t .  Cldr, 

Governor of t h e  Northwest Territory, urd Richard Butler, Superintendent 

f o r  t h e  Northern Dis t r ic t ,  hold a t rea ty  with a l l  the  Indian t r i be s  

i n  the  Northern District. The purpoaei of the negotiationr waa t o  remove 

m y  possible cause fo r  controveray and h o s t i l i t y  with the Indlane, end 

t o  insure the continued pdaca and harmony between the United Stat- and 

the Indian t r ibes ,  

65. Attempted Leases of Oneida Lands. 

In late 1787 and ear ly  1788, pr ivate  U n d  epeculatoro attempted 

t o  obtain Indian lande and evade the  prohibit ion of t h e  New York Coneti- 

tu t ion  (Finding 42, supra) by entering i n t o  999 year l w e a  d t h  the  

Oluidas and with o t h e r  New York Indians. The N w  York legislature learned 

of these leasee, and, i n  February 1788, declared them t o  be 8.1.0 and 

therefore invalid under the New York Constitution. The legislature warned 

t h e  purported lessees t h a t ,  i f  naceusary, Nsw York would uae force t o  keep 

them from intruding on Indfm lmda .  Puraumt to  the ra8olutioxw of the 

lagie la ture ,  on March 1, 1788, Governor Clinton iesued a p t o c h t h n  

direct ing t h e  leaaeee not t o  settle upon, hprove ,  enter or o t h a n f a e  

intrude on t h e  lands involved i n  the l e u e a .  



The New York City newspapera prodded sx temiva  coverwe of the  

attempted leases m d  t h e  reaction to  them by the  l eg lo la tu re  and Governorw 

Throughout t h i s  period, and continuing through the  remainder of 1788, 

t h e  Continental Coagreso maintrineti its subscript ions t o  the major New 

Yo* City newspapers (aee Finding 42, 

66. Speech of Oneida Leaders t o  Ncv York b s i a l a t u r e .  

On March 20, 1788, the N.w York Journal and Weekly R~. i8 ter  

published the text of a " ~ a l k "  gent t o  the  l e g i s l a t u r e  by repreuentatlvea 

of the  Oneida Nation of Indians. .The Oneidas axpraseed e u r p r i m  t h a t  

New York objected t o  the  lease they had entered into.  They a t a t e d  t h a t  

they much preferred a voluntary lease agreemat  t o  the  0.1. of t h e i r  

land which the state had imposed on them a t  Fort Herkimer. The Oneidas 

expressed t h e i r  determination not to eel1 any more of t h e i r  land, 

67. New York AppoLnte Comleeioners t o  Treat with Indiana. 

On March 1, 1788, the  l eg i s l a tu re  of New York paraad an a c t  

appointing by name CormDissionere t o  treat with the  N w  York Indima. 

Eleventh Seeeion, Chapter XLVII. The a c t  i n i t i a l l y  appointed Governor 

Clinton, William Floyd, Ezra L ' b a d i e u ,  John Laurence, Richard Varkk, 

Samuel Jones, and Egbert Bmam a6 commiemionera t o  hold trsatler with the 
2/ 

Indian t r i b e s  reaiding within New York. The colPPLi~elonen ware empuuered 

to  act in concert with agents appointed by W.achwretta or  eolely on 

2/ A t  the time of t h e i r  appointment. both Erta  L'Hmedieu a d  Egbert 
w 

Benson had already been elected M d e l e g a t u  t o  the Continental Coagrear, 
Zhly each served as delegate8 durlnp the aumer of 1788. 



beha l f  of New York. The purpose of t h e  treatiw was t o  preserve t he  

f r i endsh ip  of the Indiana sad t o  purchase land from them. 

The passage of t h i s  a c t ,  aa well as its l e g i s l a t i v e  h i s t o r y ,  

was reported i n  t h e  New York City newspapers. 

68, Appointment of P e t e r  Gansevoort as Indtan Commissioner. 

On Harch 5, 1788, Leonard Gansevoort, a de lega te  t o  Congress 

from New York, wrote t o  h i s  bro ther  P e t e r  Gansevoort t h a t  he was using 

his in f luence  with s t a t e  l e g i s l a t o r s  t o  have Pe te r  appointed as a s t a t e  

Indian comrmissioner. Leonard informed Pe te r  t h a t  he  had t h e  support  of 

Alexander Hamilton i n  t h i s  endeavor. 

delegate t o  Congress from New York. 

Alexander Hamilton r e s u l t e d  i n  Pe te r  

Indian commissioner under t h e  Act of 

Hamilton was at  t h a t  time a l s o  a 

The e f f o r t s  of h i s  b ro the r  and 

Ganeevoort being appointed an 

March 1, 1788, supra. 

69. New York Commissioners I n v i t e  Six Nations t o  Treaty. 

On March 3, 1788, t h e  Indian Commissioners, appointed under t h e  

March 1 act  of t h e  New York Legis la ture ,  Finding 65, supra,  m e t  and 

resolved t h a t  they hold a t r e a t y  with the  S ix  Nations a t  For t  Schuyler 

on July 10. A t  another meeting, on March 10, 1788, the Coamisaioncrs 

adopted a message to  the Six Nations i n v i t i n g  them t o  t h e  t r e a t y .  The 

message read,  i n  p a r t ,  a s  follows: 

Brethren: We have heard tha t  some of our People 
have been among you t o  purchase by t u n 8  a Lease of 
your Lands from you without  t he  Consent of our  g rea t  
Council and cont rary  t o  t h e  good old Rule and Custom 
which has always been between your Forefa thers  and ours 
and between you and us, 

Lis ten  t o  our Advice. This is one of t h e  p r i n c i p a l  
Matters about which we wish t o  talk wi th  you, and w e  advise 
you as w e l l  f o r  the Sake of yourselves and your Children 
and Children's Children as f o r  our  own Sakes, t h a t  you 



will not  s u f f e r  any of these  People t o  come and eettle 
on your lands. 

Brethren: These People who have been t o  putcha~e 
your Lands have been disobedient  Children t o  t h e i r  Fathem. 
our g rea t  Council. [Corn. Ex. 2 : Proceedings of t h e  
Colnmissioners of Indian M f a i n ,  119-122 (1861). ] 

The Comnissioners appointed John Taylor t o  d e l i v e r  the masa.ge t o  t h e  

S i x  Nations. 

March 1 2 ,  1788, the  Commissioners met again. a t  which pima they 

d ra f t ed  a response t o  t h e  Pessage t h e  l e g i s l a t u r e  had received from the  

Oneidas. See Fi.lding 64, aupra. The Oneidas were informed t h a t  the 

e n t i r e  mat te r -of  the l ea ses  (see Plnding 63, supra)  would be discused  

a t  t h e  proposed t r e a t y  a t  Fort Schuyler, and t h a t  i n  t he  mean the  the 

Oneida should not  allow any whites t o  sett le on t h e i r  lands. 

70. John Taylor Meets with Oneida Chiefs. 

On approxfmately Apr i l  2 ,  1788, John Taylor, a c t i n g  as an 

agent f o r  t h e  New York Indian Commissioners, met four  Oneida chief8 

and de l ivered  t o  them t h e  messages from t h e  Comnissioners. H e  a l s o  

requested t h a t  the  Oneidas forward t o  the  remaining Six Nations the 

message c a l l i n g  t h e  t r e a t y  a t  Fort Schuyler. 

Taylor f u r t h e r  impressed upon t h e  Oneidas the importance of t h e  

forthcoming t r ea ty .  He t o ld  them t h a t  the  white indiv iduals  who had 

leased t h e  Oneida lands were not  t o  be t rus t ed ,  and t h a t  i f  the lease 

remained i n  fo rce  the  Oneida would l o s e  all t h e i r  lands, H e  stated t h a t  

by entering i n t o  these leaees  I n  v i o l a t i o n  of t h e  laws of  New York the  

Oneidas would a l s o  l o s e  the  fr iembhip of t h e  New York G o v e m n t .  Taylor 

added t h a t  i t  was not  too late to  rescue the Oneida6 from thir riturrtioa 



and t h a t  the  Governor and the  Ccmrmissioners would attempt t o  do s o  a t  

the  treaty t o  be held a t  Fort Schuyler. 

7 1  . Port Schuyler Treaty Postponed. 

On June 16, 1788, the  New York Commissionera, having learned 

t h a t  most of the  Six  Nations would be unable t o  a t tend t h e  scheduled 

t r e a t y ,  as they planned t o  a t tend the  f ede ra l  t r e a t y  (see Finding 62, 

supra),  reaolved t o  postpone t h e  Fort Schuyler t r e a t y  u n t i l  September 1, 

72. Knwledge of Planned New York Indian Treaty. 

During the  sumaer of 1788 i t  was known i n  N e w  York City t h a t  

New York planned t o  treat with i ts  res ident  Indians. On August 18, 1788 

f o r  example, Phi l ip  Schuyler wrote t o  h i s  son, John, a s  follove: 

We have received a letter from Colonel Hamilton 
announcing the  In tent ion  of the  French Ambassador t o  
v i s i t  Albany and t o  make my home h i s  quar t e r s  . . . 
Hie stay w i l l  be shor t  a s  he  intends t o  a t tend t h e  
t r e a t y  a t  Fort Schuyler . . . [PI. Ex. 1036: Le t t e r ,  
Ph i l ip  Schuyler t o  John Schuyler, August 18, 1788 
(Schuyler Papere, New York Public  Ubra ry )  . ] 

On August 21, 1788, William Knox, Acting Secretary f o r  War, wrote t o  

h i s  brother  Henry Knox t h a t  t h e  French Ambassador and h i s  par ty  "have 

gone up t o  Albany on t h e i r  way t o  t h e  Treaty . . .I1 P1. Ex. 1037: 

Let ter ,  William Knox t o  Henry Knox, August 21, 1788 (Henry Knox Papers, 

Massachusetts His to r i ca l  Society) .  Knox added, however, t h a t  it was 

general ly believed i n  New York City t h a t  t h e  t r e a t y  would not take place 

because the  Indians would a t t end  the  f ede ra l  t r e a t y  i n  Ohio. 



73. Coa~un ica t  ions t o  Congress Concerning the  Planned Federal 
Treaty and Negotiations Between the  Six Nations a d  York. 

Federal plans f o r  a t r e a t y  with t h e  northern t r i b e s ,  to  be  he ld  

i n  Ohio, continued during the  6-r of 1788. The t r e a t y  was t o  b@ held 

under the  d i r e c t i o n  of Richard Butler  and Arthur S t .  C l a i t .  

On July  7. 1788, Secretary for War Henry b o x  fowarded t o  Congre88 

a l e t t e r  ,&-a Richard But le r  dated June 20, 1788. Butler  repor ted  t h a t  

he had been informed by the  Six Nations t h a t  they had been called to  a 

t r e a t y  a t  Fort Schuyler by New York Sta te .  The Indians decl ined the 

i n v i t a t i o n ,  p re fe r r ing  inotead t o  a t t end  the  t r e a t y  ca l l ed  by t h e  

f e d e r a l  government. 

On July 29, 1788, Secretary h o x  presented t o  Congrese another  

r epor t  from Superintendent Butler.  But le r ' s  l e t t e r  was dated Ju ly  15, 

1788. But le r  s t a t e d  t h a t  the  opening of the  t r e a t y  would be delayed 

because the Six Nations, who had been on the  way t o  the t r e a t y ,  had 

turned back t o  a t tend  a counci l  with the  S t a t e  of New York. 

Secretary Knox again preeented t o  Congreee a r epor t  from But le r  

on August 1, 1788. Butler 's  letter was dated July 18, 1788. But le r  

s t a t e d  t h a t  he had received coplaaunication from Joseph Brant t h a t  t h e  

Six Nations were leaving Niagara on t h e i r  way t o  t h e  f e d e r a l  t r e a t y .  

Butler enclosed a copy of  rant's l e t t e r  dated Ju ly  8, 1788. Brant 

s t a t e d  t h a t  the Indians had been delayed i n  a t tending  the  f e d e r a l  t r e a t y  

by "laadjobbers from t h e  Stat- of N.w York and Mas~achuclettr" vhich had 

come t o  Buffalo Creek t o  purchase land. Brant s t a t e d  t h a t  t he  matter 

was s e t t l e d  and the  Indiana were a a t t i n g  ou t  f o r  t h e  t r e a t y .  
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On September 15, 1788, Acting Secre tary  f o r  War W i l l i a m  b o x  

preamted to  Congrees a r epor t  from Arthur St .  Clair dated August 17, 

1788. S t .  C l a l r  repor ted  t h a t  t h e  S ix  Nations had no t  a r r ived  a t  Sanduaky 

as of July 24, and t h a t  t h e  remaining t r i b e s  refused t o  treat without 

them. S t *  Cla i r ' a  letter enclosed s e v e r a l  o t h e r  communications. Orre 

was t he  l c r t a r  from Joaeph Brant,  described above. Second was a letter 

from Richard But le r  dated Ataguat 3, 1788. Bu t l e r  s t a t e d  t h a t  Cornplanter 

and h i a  Seaecar were on the way t o  t h e  t r ea ty .  The t h i r d  letter was 

from a e s i s t a n t r  of Bu t l e r  and S t ,  C l a i r  who were near  t h e  t r e a t y  gromd. 

This l e t t e r ,  dated Ju ly  29, 1788, s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e  o t h e r  t r i b e s  were still 

wai t ing  t h e  a r r i v a l  of the  New York Indians. They had heard t h a t  

coamaissloners from New York and Massachusetts were a t  Buffalo Creek t o  

buy lands but  t h a t  t h e  Indians were re fus ing  t o  sell.  

74 . Fort  Schuyler Treaty Proceedings. 

(a )  August 29, 1788, The Oneidas and Onondagas a r r ived  a t  

Fort Schuyler on August 29, 1788. They were informed that t h e  remaining 

na t ions  had not  y e t  a r r i v e d  a t  t h e  counci l .  The Oneidas informed the  

Comiasioners  t h a t  they were re tu rn ing  t o  t h e i r  villages, and requested 

t h a t  they be uummoned when t h e  bueiness of t h e  t r e a t y  was ready t o  begin. 

(b) Spptember 16, 1788, The o t h e r  t r i b e s  of t h e  S ix  Nations 

did not  a r r i v e  a t  Fort  Schuyler. In the  absence of t h e  Oneidaa, t h e  

Commissionerrs entered i n t o  a t r e a t y  with t h e  Onondagas. The Commissioners 

then summoned the Oneidas t o  r e t u r n  t o  t h e  counci l .  Negotiations with 

the  Oneidas began on September 16, 1788. 



Covernor Clinton opened t h e  proceedings with a speech t o  t h e  Oneidas. 
\ 

He related t o  them t h a t  during t h e i r  absence the  state had entered Into 

a separa te  t r e a t y  with the Onondagas respec t ing  their lands. By t h e  te- 

of t h e  t r e a t y  the  Chondagas ceded a11 t h e i r  lands t o  the  state,  reserving 

t o  themeelves the  r i g h t  t o  hunt and f i s h  on t h e  land ceded, and also 

reserv ing  a l a rge  t r a c t  for their use and cultivation, Clinton asaerted 

t h a t  t h i s  arrangement would bene f i t  both the Onondagas and Naw York. 

The Governor then r e l a t e d  t h a t  t h e  l e g i s l a t u r e  had learned t h a t  white  

people had obtained leases of t h e  lands of the Oneidas. h o n d a g u ,  Senecas, 

and Cayugas i n  v i o l a t i o n  of the  Ncv York Coneti tut ion and lawe. He atated 

t h a t  these  people would be punished for t h e i r  misdeed. Clinton f u r t h e r  

s t a t e d  t h a t  the l e g i s l a t u r e  decided t h a t  i t  was t h e i r  duty t o  p ro tec t  t h e  

Indiana from the e v i l  t h a t  would b e f a l l  them i f  white people attempted t o  

set t le  on their lands under these invalid leases. The present  t r e a t y  wae 

t he re fo re  ca l l ed  so a s  t o  a r r i v e  a t  t h e  best means for providing f o r  the 

s e c u r i t y  of t h e  Indians. 

Pe te r  t h e  Quarter Master spoke on behalf of the Oneidas. He s t a t e d  

t h a t  t h e  sub jec t  matter of t h e  Governor's speech was of such g r e a t  importance 

t h a t  t he  Oneidas needed time t o  discuaa it.  Therefore, he s t a t e d ,  a rep ly  

t o   linto on's speech would not  be made u n t i l  the f o l l w i n g  day. 

(c) September 17 ,  1788. On September 17 the Beech Tree spoke 

on behalf of t h e  Oneidas. He  r e l a t e d  t h a t  the Oneidas d i d  not f u l l y  under- 

s tand  t h e  p r inc ipa l  message of the  Governor's opening speech, and requested 

t h a t  t he  speech be repeated. 
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A t r ansc r ip t  of the  Governor'e September 16 apeech was read and 

a l s o  t rans la ted  f o r  the  Oneida, 

Pr ior  t o  the  negotiat ions resuming, i t  was learned t h a t  an Oneida 

warrior had drowned, The council was suspended f o r  a funera l  and period 

of mourning and reconvened on September 19. 

(d) September 19, 1788, The proceeding6 on September 19 began 

with a speech by the  Oneida Good Peter.  Peter spoke of t h e  agree-nt 

reached a t  Fort Herkimer i n  1785 and r e l a t e d  t h a t  the  Governor had promised 

tha t  the s t a t e  would never again attempt t o  purchase land from the  Oneidas. 

He spoke a l s o  of the l e a s e  arrangements entered i n t o  by the  Oneidas and 

the  o ther  Six Nations and noted t h a t  i t  was wise of the Conmaiesioners t o  

convene the present treaty to  remove the  e v i l s  of those leases. 

Good Peter refer red  t o  the  t r e a t y  reached between New York and 

the  Onondagas and s t a t e d  t h a t  the  Oneidas were glad t h a t  t h e  Onondagas 

were able t o  secure pa r t  of t h e i r  land. Peter  s t a t e d  t h a t  he understood 

t h a t  the Governor was seeking a s imi la r  arrangement with the  Oneidas. 

He expreeaed h i s  understanding t h a t  under such an agreement the  Oneida 

would r e t a i n  the r i g h t  t o  hunt and f i s h  on the ceded land, and t h a t  t h e  

reserved land would be secured t o  the  Oneidas and t h e i r  deecexxiants. 

(e) September 20, 1788. Governor Clinton spoke first a t  the 

council on September 20. H e  began by s t a t i n g  h i s  belief t h a t  the  Oneidas 

wished h i s  advice on the bes t  weans for them t o  avoid the  injury they d g h t  

sustain from having entered i n t o  t h e  i l l e g a l  lease. The Governor s t a t e d  

t h a t  i t  was e ~ a e n t l a l  t h a t  the Oneidas understand all t h a t  he would t e l l  



them, a d  t h a t  they be l ieve  t h a t  he truly had t h e i r  wel fare  at heart. 

He then continued, 

Brothers! Be  not  deceived i n  supposing t h a t  i t  w u  our 
Intemtion t o  Kindle a Council F i r e  a t  t h i s  Time i n  Order t o  
Purchase Lands from you f o r  our People. We have a l ready 
more Landa than we have People t o  s e t t l e  on them. If we had 
wanted Lands f o r  our People t o  sett le on, we would have t o l d  
you s o  and requested you t o  have so ld  us some and would have 
paid you a reasonable P r i ce  f o r  them. [Comr. Ex; 2: proceed in^ 
of t he  Coaanissioners of X d i a n  Affa i re  224 .1  

Clinton reminded t h e  Oneidss t h a t  a t  previous t r e a t i e s  they had b w n  

cautioned not  t o  dispose of t h e i r  land t o  

l e g i a l a t u r e  t o  dea l  ~ 5 t h  them. He  s t a t e d  

grea ty  grieved when they had heard of t he  

anyone not  authorieed by the 

t h a t  the  l e g i s l a t u r e  had been 

l eaee  entered i n t o  by t h e  

Oneidas, and had c a l l e d  t h e  t r e a t y  t o  prevent these  t y p w  of t ransac t ion8 

i n  t h e  fu ture .  The Governor then s a i d ,  

Brothers,  You w i l l  be s e n s i b l e  t h a t  i t  Is very d i f  f i -  
c u l t  f o r  us, i n  a very exteneive Country, t o  watah our  
People, they ge t  a t  a Distance from US and then p r i v a t e l y  
make Bargains with you, without any Permieelon from us, 
For t h i s  Reason we advised the  Onondagoes t o  cede t o  ua a l l  
t h e i r  Lands, reeenring t o  themselves a convenient Trac t  f o r  
t h e f r  own Use and Habitation where none of ou r  People should 
come t o  s e t t l e ,  and of such Extent only t h a t  i f  any of our 
People should come there  i t  would be immediately discovered. 
h i s  Tract s o  reserved is not t o  be disposed o f ,  bu t  t o  
remain t o  the  Onondagoes and t h e i r  Posterity forever .  This 
appeared t o  us and t o  them t h e  beet Mean t o  secure  i t  t o  
t h e i r  Pos t e r i ty  forever ,  Our People w i l l  know t h a t  they 
cannot ge t  any Par t  of t h i s  Tract  and the re fo re  wi l l  not  
attempt i t .  This waa our MvLce t o  t h e  Onondagoae, and 
we give you t h e  same Advice. [Corn. Ex. 2: Proceedingr of 
t h e  CoPPmiesioners of Indian Affairs 225.1 

Clinton r t a t e d  t h a t  t h e  l e g i s l a t u r e  would be w i l l i n g  t o  p r o d d e  f o r  the 

support  of t h e  Oneidas with M f n i t i a l  payment and annual paymnt r ,  the 



s i z e  of which would depend on the  extent  of the  land reserved t o  thepi* 

He  fu r the r  advised t h e  Oneidas t h a t  the  proposal he made wsa a l l  tha t  

t h e  etate could do t o  protec t  them. H e  warned them t h a t ,  unless they 

accepted i t ,  within a few years they would be forced off t h e i r  lande and 

t h e  e t a t e  would be powerless t o  help them. He concluded, 

Brotherl~, you know we have a great  many wicked People 
among us, who w t l l  be constantly endeavouring t o  defraud 
you as iong as you have Lands t o  dispose of. W e  s h a l l  always 
punish them severely whenever we de tec t  them i n  such vicked 
and unlawful Practicee. This however w i l l  be very trouble- 
some and expemlve t o  ue, and notwithstanding our Severity 
and Vigilence with our People, yet you w i l l  s t i l l  experience 
in jur ious  Consequences . . . Nothing but  the  In terposi t ion  
of our Great Council the  Legislature,  can defend you agains t  
such In jur ies .  You w i l l  always b e  exposed t o  Impoeitiona 
unless they protect you. Your whole Mpendence must be on 
them, and i t  w i l l  not be i n  t h e i r  Power t o  assist you unless 
you agree t o  what we have proposed t o  you. [Corn. Ex. 2: 
Proceedings of the  Comnissioners of Indian Affa i rs  224-26. ] 

Good Peter  then spoke on behalf of the Oneidas. He expressed h i s  

understanding t h a t  the  t r e a t y  had been ca l led  t o  remove the  confusion 

t h a t  exis ted  i n  the Oneidas landed a f f a i r s  and not t o  purchase more land 

f o r  N e w  York, Good Peter continued, 

Brother Governor at tend while I speak a few Words. 
In the Course of your second Speech, equally excel lent  
with  your former, you abserved t h a t  you had even i n  your 
Government, d isorder ly  People who did  not obey the Voice 
of t h e i r  Chiefs. That therefore t o  avoid Confusion you 
were obliged t o  take our landed Affairs  under your Care 
and us  under your immediate Protection. This I have 
experienced the  Truth of;  I have f e l t  it. These People 
w i l l  continue t o  seek a f t e r  our Lands, and i f  any one 
of them d i e s ,  another will pursue the  same Object. This 
I have experienced t h e  Truth of . . . As long as any Spot 
of our excel lent  Land remains, they w i l l  covet i t ,  and i f  
one d i e s ,  another w i l l  pursue it, and w i l l  never r e s t  till 
they possess it. These disorder ly  People muat bear t h e i r  
own Punishaent. [Come Ex. 2: Proceedings of the  Corn- 
missioners of Indian Affai rs  227. ] 
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Good Pe te r  noted t h a t  the  Oneida should not  be held 8 o l e l ~  to  

blame for  t h e  i l l e g a l  l e a s e s  they entered i n to .  Much of the  bbme muat 

f a l l  on t h e  white men who came amng t h e  Oneida represent ing  t h a t  they 

were agemta of t he  New York l e g i s l a t u r e .  

P e t e r  then s t a t e d ,  

Brother! In the  Courae of your Speech, you have 
exhc izd  us t o  look w e l l  for t h e  good of Pos te r i ty ;  t h a t  
they were an Object of your Attent ion;  a l s o  t h a t  we should 
consider  w e l l  vhat  would be  the  Consequence of your 
abandoning us  t o  ourselves and leaving us t o  Bargains we 
had made wi th  some of your People, without your Authority,  
and t h a t  we might i n  Time be-plunged i n t o  such D i f f i c u l t i e e  
t h a t  i t  'might not be i n  your Power t o  give us Relief. 

Brother! I know the Truth of t h i a  Sentiment, t h a t  
a f t e r  repeated Warnings t o  a People, they nuy be given up 
as i nco r r ig ib l e .  [Comm. Ex. 2: Proceedings of the 
Commissioners of Indiana Affa i rs  228.1 

Peter completed h i s  speech by request ing t h e  Governor t o  r e s t o r e  peace 

t o  the  Oneida by keeping unruly white people out  of the  Oneida country. 

Colonel Lewis, an Oneida, then announced t o  t h e  Governor' that he 

and Peter Oteequette had been designated by t h e  Oneidae t o  conduct 

f u r t h e r  negot ia t ions  w i t h  the Commissionere. H e  expressed h i e  desire 

t o  reach a fa ir  se t t lement  t h a t  would be reduced t o  wr i t i ng  s o  t h a t  

t h e r e  could be no f u r t h e r  d isputes  between the  Oneida and white man. 

The Oneida delegates  described t o  the Comnieeioners the t r a c t  of  

land  which they wished t o  reserve. The proposed reserva t ion  included 

lands t o  t h e  north of Wood Creek and Oneida Lake and an extensive tarri- 

to ry  south of Oneida Lake. Governor Clinton, on behalf of t h e  Compoiesionar~ 

s t a t e d  t h a t  t he  s t a t e  would not agree t o  t h i a  reremation. H. explained 
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t h a t  i t  was improper f o r  the  Oneida t o  reeerve such s la rge  t r a c t  of l a d .  

H e  requaatad t h e  Oneida delegates t o  discuss t h e  matter fu r the r  v i t h  the  

people during the evening. 

September 21, 1788, On September 21, 1788, the  Oneida 

delegate8 informed the  Conmissioners t h a t  they were wi l l ing  t o  give up the  

lands t o  - ' ~ e  north of Oneida Lake. They then described the  reservation they 

wiahed on the south a ide  of the lake. The C o d s s i o n e r s  again re jec ted  

the proposed r e ~ e r v a t i o n  a s  being too large.  

The Oneidas then requested t h a t  the C o d s s i o n e r s  describe t o  them 

what they considered a proper reservation. The Commissioners described 

the  reservation they thought proper f o r  t h e  Oneidas, which reservation the  

Indians agreed to. After continued negotiat ions,  the  Commissioners 

and the  Oneida delegates a l s o  reached agreement on the extent  of the  

consideration t o  be paid the Oneidas. 

(g) September 22, 1788. On September 22 the  deed of cession 

was executed by both pa r t i e s .  Pr ior  t o  the execution Good Peter again 

spoke t o  Governor Clinton and the other Conrmissioners. He s t a t e d ,  

We are t h i s  Day come together with our Pipes i n  Peace* 
We have been del ibera t ing upon Matters of the  g rea tes t  
Importance respecting us a l l  here present.  W e  now re tu rn  
you our Thanks, Brother Chief, t h a t  you have brought t o  a 
happy Close the  Business of t h i s  Treaty. My Nation a r e  
now restored t o  a Possession of t h e i r  Property which they 
were i n  danger of having l o s t .  Had not my Father the  
French Gentleman [Peter  Penet] discovered i t  we should 
have been drowned; had i t  not come t o  your Ears, we  with 
a l l  our Property would have been buried very deep i n  Ruin; 
therefore we do h e a r t i l y  congratulate you t h i s  Day upon 
having accomplished t h e  Treaty and thereby secured t o  u s  
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80 much of our Property which would 0tharcrt.e have been l o s t .  
[Corn. Ex. 2: Proceedings of t h e  Commissionera of 
Affai rs  235. ] 

Peter  a l s o  presented t o  and diocuased v i t h  t h e  Governor 8tveral pr iva te  

claims of varioua Oneidas against various New Yorkers. 

After the Oneidas and the  Commissioners eigned the deed of cesrfon, 

Governor C?Cnton addreesed the Oneidas as follows: 

Brothers l W e  have given you a t  this T i m  i n  Money, 
Clothing and Provisions, s u f f i c i e n t  t o  answer your preeent 
Occasions. You have a very l a rge  Tract of Country f o r  your 
own Use and Cult ivat ion;  you arc t o  have t h e  Rents of a 
very la rge  Tract, and you a r e  t o  b e  allowed by our Great 
Council t o  the Amount of s i x  hundred Dollars annually forever. 
We a l s o  give you f ive  hundred Dollars towarda building a 
G r i s t  M i l l  and Saw M i l l  f o r  you. You have therefore more 
than s u f f i c i e n t  fo r  the comfortable Support of yourselves 
and your Pos ter i ty  i f  you are prudent and sober. I f  you 
have not Prudence and Sobriety, these very rxtensive 
Advantages reserved to  you, w i l l  not secure you from 
Dist ress  and possible Ruin. 

Brothers! Listen t o  our Advice. Endeavour t o  take  
Care of yourselves, be prudent, be sober. b not suffer 
any of our People who lead disorder ly  Livee t o  come and 
res ide  among you. They wjll not only constantly defraud 
you, but they w i l l  also by t h e i r  Example and Conversation 
make you as bad as they thcmeelvee are. If you are not 
able let us know and we w i l l  obl ige them to remove. Pay 
a due Respect t o  your Chiefs. Attend t o  the  Advice of 
good Men i n  your awn Nation, and obeerve such Regulaticms 
as they propose for  preserving Peace and good Order m g  
yourselves; observe t h i s  Advice and you w i l l  enjoy rll the 
Happiness which we s incere ly  wish t o  you and your Posterity. 
[Conm. Ex. 2: Proceedings of the  Commiseionerr of Indian 
Af f aira 248.  ] 

With the conclusion of h i s  speech Governor Clinton ended the t r u t y  

council.  
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75. Fort Schuyler Treaty with Oneidas Reported. 

On October 2, 1788, the Ncu York Journal  and Weekly bgieter 

reported t h a t  the New York S ta te  Commissioners of Indian Affa i rs  had 

returned from Fort Schuyler where they had obtained a cession t o  the 

s t a t e  of the lands of t h e  Oneidas and Onondagas. The October 9 ed i t ion  

of the  Journal and Weekly Register reported the  tenus of the  cession 

including t n e  consideration paid and the  bounds of the  t r a c t  reserved t o  

t h e  Oneidas. 

76. united Sta tes  Takes No Action t o  Protect  Oneidas. 

Both i n  1785 and 1788, the United Sta tes  d id  not  take any ac t ion 

t o  protec t  the Oneidas i n  t h e i r  land t ransact ions  with New York. The 

United S ta tes  d id  not send a representa t ive  t o  e i t h e r  of the  t r e a t i e s  t o  

asaure tha t  the Oneidas were t rea ted  f a i r l y .  It did  not attempt t o  

influence New York either t o  r e f r a i n  from taking cessions against  t h e  

desires of t h e  Oneidas, or  t o  pay the Oneidas the full value of their lands. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY, AND CONTEMPORARY INTERPRETATIONS 
OF THE ARTICLES OF CONFEDERATION 

77. Benjamin Franklin's Proposed Ar t i c les  of Confederation. 

On July 21, 1775, the  Continental Congress, s i t t i n g  a s  a c o d t t e e  

of t h e  whole, was presented with a draft of Articles of Confederation 

prepared by Benjamin Franklin. Franklin's d r a f t  contained severa l  

references t o  re la t ions  with the  Indians. In  Ar t i c le  X i t  was s t a t e d  that 

No colony shal l  engage i n  an offensive War with any 
Nation of Indiane without t h e  Consent of the Congress, or 
Great Council above mentioned, who are firet t o  consider 
the  Jus t ice  and Neceeei t y  of such War. [~omm. Ex. 4: 11 
Journals of the  Continental Congress 197. ] 



Art ic le  X I  of Franklint s d r a f t  contained the  following provisions on 

Indian a f f a i r s :  

A perpetual Alliance offensive and defensive, is to  be 
enter 'd i n t o  as soon as may be with the Six Nations; t h e i r  
Limits to  be aacertain'd and secur'd t o  them; t h e i r  Laad 
not  t o  be encroach'd on, nor any pr ivate  o r  Colony Purchaeu 
made of them hereaf ter  t o  be held good; nor any Contract for 
Lands to  be made but between t h e  Great Council of the  Indians 
a t  Onondaga and the  General Congress. Zhe Bouadariea and Land8 
of a d  t he  other Indians s h a l l  also be aacer ta in td  and eecur'd 
to  :'nor; i n  the same manner; and Persoas appointed t o  res ide  
among them i n  proper Districts, who shall take care  t o  prevent 
In jus t i ce  i n  the Trade with them, and be enabled a t  our generd 
Expence by occasional small Supplies, t o  relieve t h e i r  personal 
Wants and Distresses. And a l l  Purchases from them s h a l l  be by 
the  General Congress fo r  the -General Advantage and Benefit of 
the United Colonies. [s. 198.1 

Franklin's d r a f t  provided t h a t  the confederation w a s  t o  l a e t  unti l  

such time as the  King of England acceded t o  the demands of the  colonieta.  

The Congress did not act on Franklin's plan f o r  temporary confederation. 

78. ~ i c k l n s o n ' s  Draft of the Art ic les .  

In 1776 Congress appointed a Cornittee t o  d r a f t  a r t i c l e s  of 

confederation. The Committee designated John Dickineon of Pennsylvanfa 

t o  d r a f t  the a r t i c l e s .  Mckinaon's d r a f t  was peesanted t o  the Conpre.8 

on July 12 ,  1776. 

Dickinson's d r a f t ,  i n  Ar t i c le  XIII, prohibited any of the  colonir r  

from engaging i n  w a r  without the previous conaent of Congreee, ualese it 

were invaded, o r  unless i t  learned t h a t  an Indian nation waa planning to  

invade i t ,  It fur ther  provided, i n  Art ic le  XIV,  tha t  

A perpetual Alliance, offemlve and dhfenaive, is t o  
be entered i n t o  by the United Sta tes  aseembled as eoon 
as may be, with the Six Nations, and all other  ueighbouring 
Nations of Xndians; their Llmite t o  be ascertained, t h e i r  
Lands to be secured t o  them, and not encroached on; no 
Purchases of Lands, hereafter t o  be made of the Indiana 
by Colonies or pr ivate  Peraoae before the L i m i t s  of the Colo- 
nies are ascertained, t o  be val id :  All Purchases of Lanb not 
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included wi th in  those Limits,  where ascer ta ined ,  t o  be made 
by Contracts  between the  United S t a t e s  assembled, o r  by 
Persons f o r  t h a t  Purpose authorized by them, and t h e  g rea t  
Councils of t h e  Indians, f o r  t h e  genera l  Benefi t  of all t he  
United Colonies. [Comma EX. 5 :  V Journals  of t h e  Continental  
Congress 549.1 

Final ly ,  i n  A r t i c l e  X V I I I ,  Dlckinsoa's d r a f t  s t a t e d  t h e  a u t h o r i t y  of t h e  

f e d e r a l  government over  Indian a f f a i r s ,  i n  t h e  following language: 

"The Uniied S t a t e s  assembled s h a l l  have the s o l e  and exclueive Right and 

Power of . , , Regulating t h e  Trade, and managing a l l  Affa1.r~ with t h e  

Indiana . 
79 . 

c o m i  t tee 

. ." Id. a t  550. - 
Congressional Debate on the  Indian A f f a i r s  Provisions 
of t h e  Ar t i c l e s  of Confederation, Ju ly  1776. 

On Ju ly  25, 1776, t he  Continental  Congress, s i t t i n g  a s  a 

of t h e  whole, debated Dickinson's d r a f t  a r t i c l e s ,  addressing 

themselves s p e c i f i c a l l y  t o  A r t i c l e  XIV.  According t o  notes  of these  

debates  kept  by John Adams, t h e r e  was a d iv i s ion  of opinion between 

representa t ives  of t he  so-called landed s t a t e s ,  i.e., those s t a t e s  which 

claimed t h a t  under t h e i r  co lon ia l  c h a r t e r s  t h e i r  t e r r i t o r y  extended 

westward t o  the  P a c i f i c  Ocean, o r  a t  l e a s t  t o  the  weaternmost l i m i t  of 

t h e  United S t a t e s ,  and the landless s t a t e s ,  i .e . ,  those states whose l imi ted  
3/ - 

western boundaries were e s t ab l i shed  by t h e i r  cha r t e r s .  

3/ Ihroughout t h e  debates  on the  d r a f t i n g  and r a t i f i c a t i o n  of t h e  A r t i c l e s  - 
of Confederation i t  was t h e  pos i t i on  of t h e  l and les s  s t a t e s  t h a t  a d e f i n i t e  
western l i m i t  should be placed on a l l  t h e  landed states and t h a t  t h e  
remaining western lands should be owned i n  coamon by t h e  United S ta t e s .  
The landed s t a t e s  s t rong ly  opposed t h i s  pos i t ion .  Although t h e  landed 
states prevai led  on t h i s  i s s u e  during the d r a f t i n g  s t a g e s  of t h e  A r t i c l e s ,  
t h e  refusal of Maryland t o  r a t i f y  t h e  A r t i c l e s  unless  they d i d  so f i n a l l y  
forced the  landed s t a t e s  t o  cede t h e i r  western lands  t o  t h e  United S ta t e s .  
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'fhomas Jefferson, a delegate  from Virginia ,  speaking f o r  t h e  landed 

fixed, t he  provision i n  ~ i c k i n ~ m ' e  d r a f t  i nva l ida t ing  a l l  purch-es 

of Indian land u n t i l  the boundaries of t h e  s t a t e s  were eatabl iahed W a s  

meaningless. Jefferson proposed an amendment which inva l ida ted  purehams 

by indiv idual  a t a t e s  o r  by p r iva te  persona of lands outs ide  of the 
41 - 

boundaries of any s t a t e .  Samuel Chase of b r y l a n d ,  on behalf of t h e  

landless  s t a t e s ,  objected t o  Jef ferson ' s  amendment. He s t a t e d  t h a t  it was 

the  i n t e n t i o n  of Dickinaon's d r a f t  t o  l i m i t  t h e  boundaries of c e r t a i n  of 

the s t a t e s .  The resolution of this d b p u t e  was postponed u n t i l  Article 

XVIII was t o  be discussed. 

On Ju ly  26, 1776, the Indian provision i n  A r t i c l e  XVIII of Dickinaon'a 

d r a f t  was debated. Edward Rutledge and Thomas Lynch, both of South 

Carolina, expressed t h e i r  opposition t o  giving the power over Indian t r a d e  

and Indian a f f a i r s  t o  Congress. They f e l t  t h a t  the Indian t r ade  was a 

p r o f i t a b l e  venture which rhould be reserved t o  the  s t a t e s .  

Button Gwinnet and George Walton, both of Georgia, supported the 

Dickinson d r a f t .  Walton s t a t e d  t h a t  t he  Indian t r a d e  ought t o  be monopolized 

by Congress. If i t  were l e f t  free, he  warned, i t  would inev i t ab ly  lead t o  

4/ The exact  language of the Jefferson amendment w a s  as f o l l o w :  
-.I 

Amendment proposed. 
ART. KIV. No purchases he rea f t e r  t o  be made by indiv idual  

S t a t e s  o r  persons of landa on t h i e  continent  not  wi th in  the 
boundaries of any of these  United etatee, s h a l l  be va l id :  but  
a l l  purchases of such land3 s h a l l  be made by cont rac t  between 
the  United s tatas assembled or persons authorized by them, and 
t h e  great Councils of the  h d i m ;  aad when purchued  s h a l l  
be given freely t o  those who l a y  be permitted to  seat them. 
[Comm. Ex. 5 :  V Journals of the  Continental Congress 680, n. 1.1 



wars with the  Indians. Walton f u r t h e r  pointed out t h a t  states like Georgia, 

which acted as buffers  between the  h o s t i l e  t r i b e s  and the  remaining s t a t e s ,  

could not af ford  the  t r i b u t e s  which were necessary to keep the Indians 

peaceful. His speech suggested h i s  view t h a t  managing Indian a f f a i r s  

m e t  be a matter of congreesional r a the r  than s t a t e  concern. 

Carter Braxton of Virginia suggested t h a t  those t r i b e s  which were 

t r ibu ta ry  ;U any s t a t e  should be excepted from exclusive management by the  

federa l  government. Thomas Jefferson felt t h i s  exception should extend t o  

a l l  Indians who l ived  i n  a s t a t e .  He  s t a t e d  t h a t  these Indians were subject  

t o  s ta te  law t o  some degree. 

Samuel Chase of Maryland noted t h a t  i f  the western boundary claims of t h e  

landed s t a t e s  were honored, and tha t  i f  Indiana res id ing within s t a t e s  

were excepted from federa l  control ,  the  power t o  regula te  the affairs and 

trade with the  Indians would l i e  exclusively with the landed s t a t e s .  

James Wilson of Pennsylvania looked a t  the iaeue from the  point  of 

view of the Indians. He s t a t e d ,  

We have no r i g h t  over the  Indians, whether within o r  
without the r e a l  or  pretended l i m i t s  of any Colony. They 
w i l l  not allow themselves t o  be classed according t o  the  
bounds of Colonies. Grants made th ree  thousand miles t o  
the  eastward, have no v a l i d i t y  with the  Indiana. . . . 
[Comm. Ex. 6: V I  Journals of the Continental Congress 1078.1 

Wilson then went on t o  s t a t e  the  benef i t s  of f edera l  control  over Indian 

a f f a i r s  as follows : 

No l a s t i n g  peace w i l l  be [made] with the  Indians, 
unless made by some one body . . . No power ought t o  t r e a t  
with the  Indians, but  the  United States.  Indians know the  



s tr ik ing  benefits of confederation; they have an e m p l e  of 
it i n  the union of the Six Nations. The idea of the  union 
of the Colonies struck them forcibly last year. Nan. 
should trade with Indians without a l icense  from Congrua. 
A perpetual war would be unavoidable, i f  everybody w m  
allowed t o  trade with them. (Id. a t  1078-79.1 - 
80. Second Printed Form of the Art ic les  of Confederation. 

On August 20, 1776, the Congrass wae presented with a eecond 

d r a f t  of th- Art ic les  of Confederation. This second draft differed 

from Didrinson's d r a f t  i n  several rsspecte. Art ic le  XIV of ~tckinson'.  

Draft, refer r ing t o  purchases of Indian lands, was removed from t h e  eecond 

d r a f t  en t i r e ly .  The provision relating t o  federa l  control  over Indfan 

a f f a i r s ,  which was contained i n  newly-numbared Article XIV,  read an f o l l ~ ~ :  

"The United States Assembled s h a l l  have the eole and exclwive right and 

pwer of . . . regulating the trade,  and managing a l l  a f f a i r s  with t h e  

*I Indians, not members of any of the  State8 . . , . Corn. Ex. 5 :  V 

Journals of the Continental Congress 681-82. 

81. Proposed Amendments on Indian Affairo, 

On October 27, 1777,  two amendment8 of Article X N  r e l a t i n g  t o  

Indian Affairs  were proposed t o  Congreae. The f i ra t  amendment was t o  

s t r i k e  the words "not members of any of the s t a t e d '  'from t h e  grant of 

federal power, and t o  subs t i tu te  instead the  worda "not residtng within 

the l imit.  of any of t h e  United States." 

The second amendment was t o  strike the  e n t i r e  language rmpsc t ing  

Indian a f f a i r s  and t o  substLtute instead the f o l l d n g :  "The United Stat- 

assembled shall have the eole and exclusive right and p w e r  of . . . 
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managing a l l  a f f a i r s  r e l a t i v e  t o  war and peace with a l l  Indians not  

members of any pa r t i cu la r  Sta te ,  and regula t ing the  t r ade  with such 

nations and t r i b e s  as a r e  not res ident  within such limits wherein a 

pa r t i cu la r  S ta te  claims, and ac tua l ly  exerciees jurisdict ion".  Coma Ex. 

7: I X  Journals of the  Continental Congress 844. 

Debate on these propoaed amendments continued u n t i l  October 28, 1777, 

without Cok+,ress being able  t o  agree on e i t h e r  of them. On October 28 

a t h i r d  amendment was proposed. This amendment was t o  r e t a i n  the  e x i s t i n g  

language but 

r i g h t  of any 

Id, a t  845. - 

t o  add there to  the  following: "provided, t h a t  the  l e g i s l a t i v e  

S ta te ,  within its own l i m i t s  be not infr inged o r  violated."  

This t h i r d  amendment was adopted by the  Congress. 

82. 

Ar t ic les .  

Ar t ic les  of Confederation Approved by Congress. 

On November 15, 1777, the Congress approved a f i n a l  d r a f t  of the 

With regard t o  Indian Affa i rs  the Art ic les  of Confederation 

aa approved provided i n  Ar t i c le  IX as follows: "The United S ta tes ,  i n  

Congress assembled, s h a l l  a l s o  have t h e  s o l e  and exclusive r i g h t  and 

power of . . . regulat ing the  t rade  and managing a l l  a f f a i r s  with the 

Indians not members of any of the  Sta tes ;  provided t h a t  the  l e g i s l a t i v e  
a 

r i g h t  of any S t a t e  within i t s  awn l i m i t s  be not infr inged o r  v io la ted  

. . . ." Comn. Ex. 7: IX Journals of the Continental Congress 919. 

83. Communication Between James Monroe and James Madison, 
November 1784. 

On November 15, 1784, James Monroe, who had been present a t  the  

Fort Stanwix t r e a t y  council,  wrote t o  James Madison, who had a l s o  been a t  



t h a t  council .  Mnroe s t a t e d  arc fo l l avs :  

DEAR SIR,--You r e c t d  I hope by t h e  lut post a 
8-11 cypher from me. ~t f o r t  Stanvix you were necessa r i ly  
acquainted wi th  the  variance which had taken place between 
t h e  Indian ConrPiseionsra of t he  U. S t a t e s  & those of Wew 
York a8 -11 a s  of the  pr inc ip laa  upon which they 
respec t ive ly  acted & t h e  u t m t  t o  which they c a r r i e d  than. 
Ae I reach'd N. York about e i g h t  days a f t e r  you had l e f t  
i t  6 t h e  Ind. Com'rs were then on the  ground 6, have not 
since made a sta'ment of t h e i r  f i u a l  t r a m a c t i o n s  t h e n ,  I 
have fi,ching new t o  give you upon t h a t  head. The queetiono 
w'h appear t o  me t o  a r i s e  upon t h e  eubjecta  of var iance  
a r e  1. m e t h e r  these Indiana a r e  to  be conridered au 
memben, of the  S t a t e  of N. York, o r  whether t h e  l i v i n g  
simply within t h e  bound. of a S ta t e ,  i n  the  exclusion only 
of an European power, while  they acknowledge no obedience 
t o  its laws but  hold a country over  which thay do not  extend, 
not enjoy t h e  pro tec t ion  rior any of t h e  r igh t8  of c i t i t r a e h i p  
wi th in  it ,  is a s i t u a t i o n  w'h dl1 even i n  t h e  most q u a l i f i e d  
sense,  admit t h e i r  being held as members of a S ta t e?  2, Whether 
on the  o the r  hand t h i s  is not a desc r ip t ion  of tho- whose 
management is  c o d t t e d  by the confederation t o  the  U.S. i n  
Congress assembled? I n  e i t h a r  event the land held  by the80 
Indians having never been ceded e i t h e r  by No York o r  Waachuaetts 
belongs not t o  t h e  U. Sta te s ;  t h e  only poin t  then i n  w'h No York 
can be reprehensible  is, f o r  proceding, by a p a r t i c u l a r ,  tha  
general  Treaty. This muat be a t t r i b u t e d  t o  a owpic ion  t h a t  
t h e r e  exists i n  Congress a design t o  i n j u r e  her.  The ttan8- 
a c t i o n  w i l l  necessar i ly  come before ue, but  will It not  be mat 
expedient i n  the  present  state 06 our a f f a i r s  t o  form no dac ie ion  
the re  on? I know no advantages t o  be deriv 'd  from one. If t h e  
general  t r e a t y  hath been obstructed the  in ju ry  s w t a i n t d  i n  t h a t  
ins tance  is now without remedy. A decieion e i t h a r  way, w i l l  
n e i t h e r  r e s t o r e  the  time we have l o s t  nor  tamanre the  impresalons 
wh t h i e  variance has made wlth the  krdiane & in t he  Court of 
G. Britain respec t ing  us, I f  t h e  r i g h t  of Congress hath been 
contraven'd s h a l l  we not derive g r e a t e r  i n j u r y  by urging i t  to  
the  reprehension of New York who holds herae l f  aggriev'd i n  
o t h e r  respec ts  than by s u f f e r i n g  our a m s e  of t h a t  delinquency 
t o  l a y  dormant? Our purchases wrst be made without h e r  bounds 
& those Indiana whose alliance we seek i nhab i t  a country t o  
which she  hath no claim. . . . 
[ c o ~ ,  Ex. 9 :  I Writings of J~mes Monroe 46-47 (S. Hamilton edJ] 



James Madison rep l i ed  t o  Hanroe on November 27, 1784, s t a t i n g ,  

Dear Sir,--Your favor of the  15th ina tan t  came t o  hand by thursday's 
post. Mine by the  l a s t  post  acknowledged your preceding one. 
The umbrage given t o  the  Conmdssioners of the  United Sta tes  by 
the  negociatiolu, of New York with the  Indians was not a l together  
unknown t o  me,  though I am lees acquainted with the circumstances 
of i t  than your l e t t e r  supposes. The idea  which I a t  present  have 
of the  af fa i r  leads  me t o  eay, t h a t  as f a r  a s  New York may c l a i m  
a right of t r e a t i n g  with Indians f o r  the  purchase of lands 
withiu her limits, she has the  Confederation on her aide; aa far  
as she may have exerted t h a t  r i g h t  i n  contravention of the  General 
Treaty, o r  even unconfidential ly with the  ComPPiesioners of Congress, 
aha ha8 viola ted  both duty and decorum. The federa l  Ar t i c les  
give Congress the  exclusive r i g h t  of managing a l l  a f f a i r s  with the  
Indians not members of any S ta te ,  under a proviso, t h a t  the 
Legislat ive author i ty  of the  -State within i ts own l i m i t s  be  not 
violated.  By Indiana not members of a S ta te ,  must be meant 
those, I conceive, who do not l i v e  within the body of the  
Society, or  whose persons o r  property form no objects  of its 
lawo. In  the  case of Indians of t h i s  descript ion,  the  only 
r e s t r a i n t  on Congress is  imposed by the  Legis la t ive  author i ty  
of the Sta te .  

I f  t h i s  proviso be taken i n  i ts  f u l l  l a t i t u d e ,  i t  must 
destroy the  author i ty  of Congress a l together ,  s ince  no a c t  of 
Congreee within the l i m i t s  of a Sta te  can be conceived which will 
not i n  some way o r  o ther  encroach up011 the  author i ty  of the  
State.  In order, then, t o  give some meaning t o  both p a r t s  of 
the sentence, aa a known r u l e  of in te rp re ta t ion  requires ,  we 
must r e s t r a i n  t h i s  proviso to  eome par t i cu la r  view of the  pa r t i e s .  
What was chis  view? My answer is, t h a t  i t  was t o  save t o  the 
States t h e i r  r i gh t  of pre-emption of lands from the  Indians. My 
reaaons are: 1. That t h i s  was the  p r inc ipa l  r i g h t  formerly 
exerted by the Colonies with regard t o  t h e  Indians. 2. That i t  
was a r i g h t  asser ted  by the  laws a s  w e l l  as the proceedings of 
a l l  of them, and therefore,  being most famil iar ,  would be w e t  
l i k e l y  t o  be i n  contemplation of the  pa r t i e s .  3. That being of 
most consequence t o  the  Sta tes  individually, and least inconsis- 
t e n t  with the general  powers of Congress, it  was most l i k e l y  t o  
be made a ground of compramise. 4. It has been always said t h a t  
the  proviso came from the  Virginia Delegates, who would na tu ra l ly  
be most v i g i l a n t  over the  t e r r i t o r i a l  r i g h t s  of their coaeti tuents .  
But whatever may be the true boundary between the  author i ty  of 
Congress and t h a t  of New York, o r  however ind i sc ree t  t h e  l a t t e r  
m y  have been, I join emtirely with you i n  thinking t h a t  
temperance on the pa r t  of the former w i l l  be the  wisest policy. 
(~omm. Ex. 10: I Letters  and Other Writings of James Madison 
109-110 (emphasis i n  the  o r i g i n a l ) . ]  



84. Report of Committee on Southern Indian A f f d r a .  1787 

bring 1786 and 1787 c i t i z e n s  of the States of Georgia and North 

These encroachments presented the  real danger of an Indian war 0x1 t h e  

southern f r o n t i e r .  In  1787, at  t h e  request  of t he  Secretary at  Ma+. a 

committee zf Congress was appointed t o  inves t iga t e  the  d i e p u t m  and make 

recou?mendations t o  Congreas. The r epor t  of thia c o d t t e e  w u  pre-nted 

t o  Congress on Zugwt  3, 1787. In i t 8  r epor t  t he  c a m i t t e e  ccmnanted on 

t h e  poss ib le  construct ion of t he  Articles of Confederation, u followe: 

[ ~ l h e r e  i e  another c h c u w t a n c e  f a r  more d a r r a e s f n g ,  and 
t h a t  l a  the  clause i n  the  confdderation relative t o  managing 
a l l  a f f a i r s  with the  Ind ime ,  6c. is d i f f e r e n t l y  construed by 
Congress and the two Sta tee  wi th in  whose limit8 the  s a i d  t r i b m  
and disputed lands are .  The construct ion contended f o r  by thore 
S ta t e s ,  if right, appears t o  t h e  cornnittee, t o  leave t h e  f e d e r a l  
powers, i n  t h i s  case, a mere n u l l i t y ;  and t o  make i t  t o t a l l y  
uncer ta in  on what p r inc ip l e  Congreee is t o  i n t e r f e r e  between them 
and the  s a i d  t r i b e s ;  The Sta te s  not only contend f o r  t h i s  
conatruct ion,  but  have ac tua l ly  pursued msrsureu i n  conforority 
t o  i t .  North Carolina has  undertaken t o  m r i g n  land t o  t h e  
Cherokees, and Georgia has proceeded t o  t r e a t  with the  Creeks 
concerning peace, lande, and t he  ob jec t s ,  w u a l f y  t h e  p r i n c i p a l  
ones i n  almost every t r e a t y  with the  Indians. Thie conatruct ion 
appears t o  the  committee not only t o  be productive of confusion, 
disputes and embarrassment8 i n  managing a f f a i r 8  with t h e  
Independent t r i b e s  wi th in  t h e  l i m i t s  of the  S ta tea ,  but  by no 
means t he  t r u e  one. The clause r e fe r r ed  t o  is,  "~ongreos  aha11 
have the  s o l e  and exclusive r i g h t  and power of regula t ing  t h e  
t r ade  and managing a l l  a f f a i r s  with the  Indiana, not  membare of 
any of the  Statea;  provided t h a t  the  Legis la t ive  r i g h t  of any 
S t a t e  within i ts  own limits be not  inf r inged  o r  violated". In 
forming t h i s  clause,  t he  p a r t i e s  t o  the  f e d e r a l  co l~pact ,  must 
have had some d e f i n i t e  objec te  i n  view; t h e  objec te  t h a t  come 
i n t o  view pr inc ipa l ly ,  i n  forming t r e a t i e s  or managing Affair. 
with the  Indians, had been long understood m d  p r e t t y  we l l  
ascer ta ined  i n  t h i s  country. The coPpi t tee  conceive t h a t  i t  
has been long the  o p i d o n  of the country, rupported by J w t i c e  
and humanity, t h a t  the  Indium have j u s t  claim t o  a11 l a d e  



occupied by and not f a i r l y  purchaeed from them; and t h a t  i n  
managing a f f a i r s  with them, the  p r inc ipa l  ob jec t s  have been 
those of making war and peace, purchasing c e r t a i n  t r a c t s  of 
t h e i r  lands, f ix ing  the boundaries between them and our 
people, and preventing the  l a t t e r  s e t t l i n g  on lands l e f t  
I n  poases8ion of the  former. The powers neceseary t o  these 
objects  appear t o  the  coumtttee t o  be ind iv i s ib le ,  and 
t h a t  the  p a r t i e s  t o  the  confederation must have intended t o  
give them e n t i r e  t o  the Union, o r  t o  have given them e n t i r e  
t o  the Sta te ;  theee powers before the  revolution were pos- 
sessed by the King, and exercised by him nor did they 
I n t e r f e r e  with the  l e g i s l a t i v e  r i g h t  of the  colony within its 
1iaLttc; t h i s  d i s t i n c t i o n  which was then and may be now 
taken, may perhaps serve  t o  explain the  proviso, p a r t  of the  
rec i t ed  clause. The lawe of the  S t a t e  can have no e f f e c t  
upon a t r i b e  of Ind iaw o r  t h e i r  lands within the  limits of 
the  r t a t e  ao long as t h a t  t r i b e  is independent, and not a 
member of the  s t a t e ,  ye t  the  -laws of the  state may be executed 
upon debtors, cr iminals ,  and other  proper objects  of those 
laws i n  a l l  p a r t s  of i t ,  and therefore t h e  union may make 
a t i p u l a t i o m  with any such t r i b e ,  secure i t  i n  t h e  enjoyment 
of all o r  pa r t  of i ts  lands, without in f r ing ing  upon the  
l e g i s l a t i v e  r i g h t  i n  queetion. It cannot be supposed, t h e  
s t a t e  has the  powers mentioned without making the rec i t ed  
clause m e l e s s ,  and without absurdity i n  theory a s  well  a s  
i n  pract ice ;  f o r  the Indian t r i b e s  a r e  j u s t l y  considered t h e  
~~~n fr iends  o r  enemies of the  United S ta tes ,  and no 
pa r t i cu la r  s t a t e  can have an exclusive i n t e r e s t  i n  the 
management of Affa i rs  with any of t h e  t r i b e e ,  except i n  goma 
uncommon cases. [ Comm. Ex. 8: XXXIII Journals  of the  
Continental Congress 457-59.1 

85, Duane's Advice to  Governor Clinton. 

In  the summer of 1784, p r i o r  t o  the t r e a t y  council between 

the  State of New York and the  Six Nations, James Duane, a New York 

Delegate t o  Congress, expressed h i s  views t o  Governor Clinton on t h e  

respective a u t h o r i t i e s  of t h e  United S ta tes  and New York t o  t r e a t  with 

the  Indians. H e  s t a t e d ,  



Great d i f f i c u l t y  a r i s e s  from the  in ter ference  of the 
proposed Treaty with the  Authority 6 the  views of Congres@. 

Five of the  Six Tribes of Indians were a t  open War with 
the  United Sta tes ,  The general Treaty of P u c e  doth not 
mention nor extend t o  them. Congress, therefore,  on the 9th 
art. of the  Confed. c l a i m  the exclusive Right t o  makr t h i s  
peace; And If the Tribes a r e  t o  ba considered as independent 
net  ions, detached from the  State,  and abeolutely unconnected 
with i t ,  the  Claim of Congress wuld be uncontrovertable. 

There is then an indispensable b c e a s i t y  t h a t  these Tribes 
mould be t rea ted  a s  an t fen t  Dependanta on t h i s  Sta te ,  placed 
under its protect ion,  with a l l  t h e i r  t e r r i t o r i a l  Right#, by 
t h e i r  own consent publickly manifested i n  solenm and repeated 
Treaties.  Of this there i d  s u f f i c i e n t  evidence and pa r t i cu la r ly  
by the  Deeds of 1701 and 1726 which tho' i n  the  name of the  Nag 
were obtained a t  the  Expence of the  people of t h i s  Sta te ,  and 
fo r  t h e i r  Beneftt. On t h i s  ground the Tribes i n  question 
may f a l l  under the character  of Members of the Sta te ,  with the  
management of whom Congress have no concern, 

But the S p i r i t  of the Message from the Indians rendered 
questionable whether they w i l l  eubmit t o  be t rea ted  a s  
Dependanta. They assume a perfec t  Equality; and instead 
of Contrition f o r  t h e i r  perfidious Behaviour, secm ever t o  
consider themselves ae the Party courted and s o l l i c i t e d  for  
Reconciliation and Favour. 

This then w i l l  be a point t o  be managed wi th  Skill and 
Delicacy, nor w i l l  any Care bestowd on i t  be misapplied f o r  
besides the Respect which we owe t o  the Union, our own p a r t i c u l a r  
Honor, In te res t  and Safety require t h a t  these Tribea ahould be 
reconciled t o  the Idea of being Membera of the Sta te ,  dependant 
upon its government and r e s t i n g  upon its Protection. If we 
adopt the diegraceful  system of pensioning, courting and f l a t -  
t e r ing  them a s  great  and mighty nations,  we e h a l l  once more 
l i ke  the Albanians be their Fools and Slaves, and t h i s  Revolution 
i n  my Eyes vill have l o s t  more than half  i ts '  Value. 

From these observations i t  will follow t h a t  the  S t i l e ,  a s  
w e l l  as the uubstance, of the Co~~rwtnications on the  part of 
Government a r e  very material .  And I may add t h a t  ins tead of 
conforming t o  the ceremonies pract iced i n  Negociationa among 
the  Indians it would be wise t o  br ing them t o  adopt, gradually 
ou r  Forms. 



1st. Then If i t  vill not be too great  an innovation 
which I think i s  not t o  be apprehended. It would use 
ne i the r  Belts nor s t r i n g s  i n  any Cammunication l a s t e d  
of i t ,  a l l  Messagcs o r  Coxmnunications should be signed 
o r  sealed o r  both. 

2nd. I would never s u f f e r  the word nations,  o r  Six 
Nations, o r  Confederates o r  Council F i re  a t  Onondaga, 
o r  any other  Form which would revive o r  seem t o  confirm t h e i r  former 
Ideas of Independence t o  except. I would say nothing 
qf making peace or  burying the  Hatchet, f o r  t h a t  would 
be offensive t o  Congress, perhaps very Jus t ly .  But I 
voud study t o  carry on the  Intercourse (for  I object 
even against the Term Treaty, which seems t o  much t o  
employ Equality) with as much pla iness  and s impl ic i ty  a s  
possible--and as i f  I was ac tua l ly  t ransact ing Business 
v i t h  the Citizens. This must, I am sensible ,  be repugnant 
t o  t h e  opinions which w i l l  be given a t  Albany; but t h e i r  
management instead of humbling, gave the Indians the  
super io r i ty  and made them their Tyrants; and I have long 
6 fatal.  Experience t o  convince me t h a t  they were i n  a wrong 
course 

. . a .  

bthly. The S t i l e  by which the Indians are t o  be addres- 
sed i e  of Moment a lso .  They a r e  used t o  be ca l led  Brethren, 
Sachems and Warriors of the Six Nations. I hope i t  will 
never be repeated. It i s  s u f f i c i e n t  t o  make them sens ible  
t h a t  they a r e  spoken to:  without complementing 20 o r  
30 Mohawks as a nation and a few more Tusceroroes & Onondagoes 
as d i s t i n c t  nations. It mud be not  l e s s  absurd than 
mischievous. They shoud ra the r  be taught t h a t  by separat ing 
from the Oneidas, and enter ing i n t o  a wicked war, they had 
weakened and destroyed themselves and tha t  the publick 
opinion of t h e i r  importance had long since ceased. [ D e f .  
Ex. J-40-A: VIII Public Papere of George Clinton 328- 
332 (1904) (footnotes omitted). ] 

86. It is es tabl ished by the evidence: 

(1) t h a t  the  ac t ions  of New York p r i o r  to,  during, and subse- 

quent t o  the Fort Stanwix Treaty i n  1784 gave warning t o  the United Sta tes  

t h a t  New York intended t o  assert ju r i sd ic t ion  over Indian a f f a i r s ;  



(2) t h a t  p r i o r  t o  and during the  negotiat ion8 which r e su l t ed  

i n  t h e  Port Stanwix t r e a t y  t h e  United S t a t e s  and i ts  o f f i c e r s  ac ted  t o  

prevent b w  York from en te r ing  i n t o  separa te  t r e a t t e a  with the  

S i x  Nations and from i n t e r v e r l a g  with t h e  f ede ra l  t r e a t y ;  

(3)  t h a t  i n  1785 delegates  t o  the  Continental Congrere had 

access  t o  the New York City newpapers  which reported New York'r i n t e n t i o n  

t o  procur; land cessiona from i t 8  Indiana, and the a c t u a l  purchara of 

land from the  Oneidas a t  Fort  Herkimer; 

(4)  t h a t  t he  congreaaional delegatem from Mamachueettr read 

of New York's i n t e n t i o n  t o  acqui re  and sell Indian lands, and took 

a c t i o n  t o  pro tec t  the  i n t e r e s t s  of Massachusetts i n  thoee lands; 

( 5 )  t h a t  i n  i n v i t i n g  t h e  Oneidaa t o  the 1785 t r e a t y  the New 

York Indian Commissioners informed t h e  Oneidae t h a t  t he  t r e a t y  was 

made necessary by the  i l l e g a l  at tempts  of white people t o  purchula Oneida 

lands. The Oneidas d i d  not r e a l i z e  t h a t  the  primary purpoae of t h e  

t r e a t y  was t o  purchase t h e i r  land; 

(6) t h a t  a t  t he  Fort Herkimer t r e a t y ,  on June 25, 1785, Pet rus  

the Miniater  informed Governor Clinton t h a t  t he  Oneidas could not #ell  t o  

New York the lands which New York wiehed t o  purchase, and requerted t h a t  

Ncw York prevent i ts  c i t i z e n s  from en te r ing  into'  Oneida land; 

(7)  t h a t  a t  t h e  June 26, 1785, ceeeion of t h e  Fort b r k i m e r  

Treaty, Governor Clinton accused the  Oneidas of ac t ing  i n  bad f a i t h ,  and 

warned them t h a t ,  unless  they so ld  t h e  land requested by New York, Naw 

York would no longer p ro tec t  them from t h e  incursions of white r e t t l e r e b  
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(8) t h a t  a f t e r  p r i v a t e  meetings between t h e  New York 

Commis8ioners and the Oneidae, Pe t rus  t h e  ninister vas replaced as t h e  

p r inc ipa l  epokesman f o r  the Oneidas, and t h e  Oneidas suddenly changed 

t h e i r  mind8 and agreed t o  sell  t h e  lands requeeted by New York S ta t e .  

( 9 )  t h a t  i n  reorganizing t h e  Indian department i n  1786 Congress 

aeser ted  f t e  j u r i s d i c t i o n  over Indian t r i b e s  r e s i d i n g  w e s t  of t h e  

Hudson Rlver, inc luding  t h e  Oneidas; 

(10) t h a t  i n  1788 de legates  t o  t h e  Continental  Congress had access  

t o  t h e  N e w  York Ci ty  newspapers which repor ted  t h e  appointment of new com- 

misalonere td obta in  land cart3ions from t h e  Indians, and t h e  a c t u a l  

purchase of the lands of t h e  Oneidas a t  Fort Schuyler; 

(11) t h a t  dur ing  the summer of 1788 t h e  f e d e r a l  o f f i c i a l  

respons ib le  f o r  administer ing Indian affairs,  as well aa c e r t a i n  de legates  

t o  Congress, were aware t h a t  New York was planning an  Indian t r e a t y  a t  

Fort  Schuyler. 

(12) t h a t  i n  February 1788 t h e  New York l e g i s l a t u r e  voided t h e  

attempted long term lease of Oneida lande by private land specula tors ;  

(13) t h a t  i n  Apr i l  1788, John Taylor,  an agent of New York S ta t e ,  

informed the  Oneida8 t h a t  t h e  unlawful l e a s e  of t h e i r  lands  t o  non-Indians 

would r e s u l t  i n  t h e i r  l oa ing  t h e i r  lands and t h e  f r i endsh ip  of  t h e  New 

York government unless they at tended t h e  Fort Schuyler Treaty and d i d  what was 

requested by t h e  mvernor.  Taylor did not inform t h e  Oneidas t h a t  the New 

York l e g i s l a t u r e  had already voided t h e  lease. 

(14) t h a t  a t  the Fort Schuyler Treaty i n  1788 Governor Clinton 

represented t o  t h e  Oneidas t h a t  they would l o s e  a l l  t h e i r  land unlees they 
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agreed t o  New York's proposal ,  under vhich they would cede the  r e m i n d e r  

of t h e i r  lands t o  New York. Further ,  Clinton s p e c i f i c a l l y  t o l d  t h e  

Oneidas t h e  t r e a t y  was not c a l l e d  by New York t o  purchase Oneida land. 

(15) t h a t  a t  the  For t  Schuyler Treaty i n  1788 t h e  Onefdar 

understood the  t r ansac t ion  not  ae a s a l e  of t h e i r  land8 to  New York, bu t  

r a t h e r  as a means of reacqui r ing  lands  they were l e d  t o  be l i eve  they hqd 

a l ready  l o s t .  The Oneida bel ieved t h a t  New York was assuming a guardian- 

s h i p  over  t h e i r  landed a f f a i r s .  - 

87. It is not  e s t ab l i shed  by the  evidence: 

(1) t h a t  t he  United S t a t e s  o r  any of i ts o f f i c e r s  took any 

a c t i o n  t o  p r o t e c t  t he  i n t e r e e t a  of t h e  Oneida Natian i n  i ts land 

t ranaac t iona  with New York i n  1785 and 1788. 

(2)  t h a t  t he  Oneida Nation vo lun ta r i l y  so ld  i t 8  land6 t o  

New York S t a t e  i n  t h e  1785 and 1788 land t raneac t ione .  

CONCLUSION OF LAW 

On t h e  b a s i s  of t h e  foregoing primary and u l t ima te  f indingn,  t h e  

Commission concludes a s  a matter of law t h a t  t h e  United S t a t e s  f a l i e d  t o  

f u l f i l l  i ts s p e c i a l  ob l iga t ion  t o  t h e  Oneida Nation of Indians i n  r e l a t i o n  

t o  p ro t ec t i ng  i t s  peaceful  possession of lands i n  N e w  York S t a t e .  

The defendant w i l l  be l i a b l e  t o  t h e  p l a i n t i f f s  under Sect ion 2 ,  Clause (S) ,  

of t h e  Indian C l a i m s  C o d s s i o n  Act, 25 U.S.C. S70a (19701, if t h e  Oneida 
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Nation did not receive conecionable consideration for the land it ceded 

to New York under the 1785 and 1788 treaties, 

- 7 4 k k ~ ~  
J/hn 3?! Vance, Camrmiaeioner ' 


